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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members of UTKARSH SMALIL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of UTKARSH SMALL FINANCE
BANK LIMITED (“the Bank”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,
Profit and Loss Account, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 and the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act (“Accounting Standards”) as applicable to bank and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at
March 31, 2023, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10} of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of ocur report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report,
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Sl.

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
No.
1 Identification of Non-Performing

Advances and Provisioning for
Advances

(Refer Schedule 9 read with Note 18.4 to
the financial statements)

Advances constitute a significant portion
of the Bank’'s assets and the quality of
these advances is measured in terms of
ratic of Non-Performing Advances
{("NPA") to the gross advances of the
Bank. The Bank has net advances
amounting to Rs. 13,06,877 Lakhs as at
31 March, 2023,

Advances constitute a significant portion
of the Bank’s assets, and the quality of
these advances is measured in terms of
ratio of Non-Performing Advances
("NPA”} to the gross advances of the
Bank. The Bank has gross advances
amounting to Rs. 13,35,711 Lakhs
(Previous Year Rs. 10,63,072 Lakhs} and
the gross NPA ratio of Bank is 3.23 %
(Previous Year 6.10%) as at March 31,
2023,

The Reserve Bank of India’s (RBI)
guidelines on income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning {IRAC
norms’) and other RBI guidelines (herein
after referred as “Relevant RBI
guidelines”) prescribes the norms for
identification and classification of NPAs
and the minimum provision required for
such assets,

The Bank is also required to apply its
judgement to determine the
identification and provisioning for NPAs
by applying quantitative as well as
qualitative factors.

Since the identification of NPAs and
provisioning for advances is significant to
the overall audit, we have ascertained
this as a key audit matter.

Our audit approach included testing the
design, operating effectiveness of internai
controls and substantive audit procedures in
respect of income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning pertaining to
advances. In particular, our procedures
include :

. We have evaluated and understood the
Bank’s internal control system in
adhering to the Relevant RBI guidelines;

. We have analysed and understood key IT
systems/ applications used and tested
the design and implementation as well as
operational effectiveness of relevant
controls  In relation to income
recognition, asset classification, viz.,
standard, sub-standard, doubtful and
loss with reference to relevant RBI
guidelines and provisioning pertaining to
advances;

. We test checked advances tc examine
the validity of the recorded amounts,
underlying loan documentation and
statement of accounts, indicators of
impairment, impairment provision for
NPAs, and compliance with IRAC norms
and ather RBI Guidelines.

. We had performed the walkthrough of
the NPA automation process in the
current financial year and tested the core
functionality for selected sample and
tested the identification of NPA and
computation of provisions.

. With respect to contingency and floating
provision held as at March 31, 2023
rowards unforeseen risk and stress
emanating from certain portfolic  of
advances, we have tested key inputs,
assumptions and methodology used by
the management in estimating the
provision amount (including utilization
thereof).
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Key Information technology (IT)
systems used in financial reporting
process:

As a Scheduled Commercial Bank that
operates on core banking soluticn
{("CBS"} and other loan applications
across its branches, the reliability and
security of 1T systems plays a key role in
the business operations. Since large
volume of transactions are processed
daily, the IT controls are reguired to
ensure that applications process data as
expected and that changes are made in
an appropriate manner,

The IT infrastructure is critical for smooth
functioning of the Bank's business
operations as well as for timely and

accurate financial accounting and
reporting.
Due to the pervasive nature and

complexity of the IT environment we
have identified and tested access
controls, segregating of duties and
change management of relevant
Information technology applications,
databases and operating systems ("IT”)
used in financial reporting process as a
key audit matter.

We involved our IT specialists to obtain an
understanding of the Bank’s IT related
contral  environment. Furthermore, we
conducted an assessment and identified key
IT applications, databases and operating
systems that are relevant for our audit, For
the key IT systems used to prepare
accounting and financial information, our
areas of audit focus included access security
{including controls over privileged access),
program change controls, database
management and network operations. In
particular, our procedures include :

We tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the Bank's General
IT controls over the key IT systems that are
critical to financial reporting. This included
evaluation of Bank's controls to evaluate
segregation of duties and access rights being
provisioned / modified based on duly
approved requests, access for exit cases
being revoked in a timely manner and access
of all users being recertified during the period
of audit;

We also tested key automated and manual
business cycle controls and logic for system
generated reports relevant to the audit;
including testing of compensating controls or
performed alternate procedures to assess
whether there were any unaddressed 1T risks
that would materially impact the financial
statements,
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

. The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the Chairman’s Statement, the Directors
Report including annexures to the Directors report included in the Annual Report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors report thereon and the
Basel II Disclosures under New Capital Adequacy Framework {Basel II Disclosures).

« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and Basel
II Disclosures and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

» If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial perfermance and cash flows of the Bank in
accordance with the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949,
Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and the
circulars, guidelines and the directions issued by the Reserve Banlk of India, from time to
time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Bank’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Bank has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to

continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the econemic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, includﬁifgg‘:.gp‘y
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. /gsz};?ﬁ?iii ;
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Bank for the previous reporting periods
included in the Financial Statements have been audited by the predecessor auditor. The
report of the predecessor auditor dated April 25,2022, on this comparative financial
information expressed an un-modified opinion.

Our Opinion on the Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3} of the Act and Section 30(3) of the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949, based on our Audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and
found them to be satisfactory.

b} In our opinion, the transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice have
been within the powers of the bank.

¢) As explained in the paragraph 2 below, the financial accounting system of the Bank
are centralised and, therefore, accounting returns are not required to be submitted
by branches.

d) In our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the
Bank so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

e} The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

f} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act as applicable to the Banks.

g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken
oh record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of

the Act.
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h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to

)

financial statements of the Bank and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Qur report expresses an unmadified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Bank’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the entity being a banking company, section 197 of the Act related to
the managerial remuneration is not applicable by virtue of Section 35B(2A) of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ruies, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position as at the yearend in its financial statements - Refer Schedule 12 to
the financial statements;

i, The Bank did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
as at the yearend for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred {o the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Bank.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the note 18,28 to the financial statements no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Bank to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Bank (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the note 18.28 to the financial statements, no
funds have been received by the Bank from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Bank shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (@) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.




Deloitte Haskins & Sells Kirtane & Pandit LLP

v. The Bank has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

vi, Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Bank w.e.f. April
1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March
31, 2023.

We report that during the course of our audit we have visited and performed select
relevant procedures at 43 branches. Since the Bank considers its key operations to be
automated, with the key applications largely integrated to the Core Banking System,
it does not require its branches to submit any financial returns. Accordingly, our audit
is carried out centrally at Head Office based on the records and data required for the
purpose of Audit being made available to us.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For Kirtane & Pandit LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No, 117365W)

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner

Membership No. 109839
UDIN: 23109839BGXPXI7832
Place: Mumbal

Date: April 28, 2023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
under Clause (i)} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
UTKARSH SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED (the “Bank”)} as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financiat
controls based on the internal control over financia!l reporting criteria established by the
Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Bank's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013, the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respansibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Bank based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)} issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. the
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
ricks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Bank's internal financial contret with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Bank's internal financial controt with reference
to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that {1} pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Bank; (2) provide reascnable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Bank are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Bank's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of internal financial control with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial control with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria
for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Bank considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 117365W) {Firm Registration
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G. K. Subramaniam " Sandeep Welling

Partner Partner

Membership No. 109839 Membership No. 044576
UDIN: 23109839BGXPXI7832 UDIN: 23044576BGXPSD756%
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 28, 2023 Date: April 28, 2023
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Bakance Sheet as at 31 Marvch 2023

(% in 0008}

Schedule Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022

CAPITAL and LIABILITIES
Capital | §.939.047 8933315
Reserves and Surplus 2 044,159 6707 753
Deposis 3 137101 400 105741 826
Borrowings 4 23494753 237149,34¢
Other Linbilities and Provisions 5 10,376.036 §.433.535
Total 191,175,413 136,637,698
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 P 926,566 1PO78972
Balances with banks and money a1 cail and short notice 13,243,064 737.519
Investments 3 38,594,222 23479258
Advanees 9 130,687,655 102,281,473
Fixed Assets 10 3,033,239 28653338
Other Assels [ 3,696,669 3265101
Total 101175415 150,637,698
Contingent Linbilities 12 3416049 564,192
Rills fior Collection M -
Segnificant accounuing policies 17
Notes 1o the financiad statements I8

Schedules referred o above form an integral part of the Financial statcments. The Balanee Sheet hos been prepored in conformity with Forn A" of the Third Schedule to

the Banking Reguolation Act, 1949,

As per our report ol even date attached 4
fer Mis Deloitte Haskins & Bells for Ms Kirtane & Pandit LLP

Chertered Acconntants Chariered Aocowntants

ICAI Fivm Registration No. 117305W {CAL Firm Registration No. 103213W AV 00057
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Sandeep D Welling
Pariner
Membership No. 044576

G.K. Subramdiniag
Partner
Aembership No. 109839

Place : Mumbai
Date : 28 April 2023
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Sarju Simaria
Chigf Finaneral (fficer
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Muytiah Ganapathy
Compeny Secrefiy
FCS 3074

Place | Mambai
Date ;28 April 2023




Litharsly Small Finance Baak Limited

Profit and Loss Account for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(2 in 000s)

Sehedule For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Mareh 2023 March 2022
1 {INCOME
Interest Famed i3 25049798 185,488,126
Other Income id 2993062 F.848.35
Total 28,842,860 26,336,460
H [EXPENDITURE
interest Expended 15 G.759.489 7.879.623
COhperating Expenses 16 4,900,136 7.337.493
Provisions and Contingencies 18.14.3 4,338216 4.504,724
Totai 23,997 841 19,721.844
i JPROFIT
Net Profit for the year 4,043,019 614,680
Balance 1 Profit and Loss account brought forward from previous year 2,337,240 2.072,483
Tetal 6,582,259 2,687,099
IV JAPPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 1011254 133,654
Transfer to [nvestment Fluctuation Reserve 17,986 111.273
Transfer o Capital Reserve - 2,322
Other adjustments 184.8d 105,136 105136
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 3,694,147 2,537,240
Total 6,582,239 2,687,097
Vv JEARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE 18.13
Basic EPS (%) 4.52 070
Diluted £P°S (%) A B.7¢
Face Value per share (3) 10 11
Significant aceounting pelicies 17
Notes to the financial statements 18

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial statements. The Profit and Loss Account has been prepared n conformity with Form "B of the Third
Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949

As per our report of even date attached
Jfor M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

ICAL Firm Registration No. 117365W

G.K. Subramaniam

Partner
Membership No, 169839

Place : Mumbai
Date 28 Aprit 2023

Jor M/s Kirtane & Pandit LLP

Chariered Accountants
ICAY Firm Registration No. 103213W/W 100057
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Sandeep D Welling
Pariner
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forand on behall of the Board of Directors of
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Sarju Simaria
Chigf Finemeial Officer
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Muthiah Ganapathy
Company Secretary
FCS 3674

Place : Mumbai
Date 28 Aprit 2023




Uthavsh Seoul] Finance Bank Limited
Audited Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(£ in '000s)

.50 Particoiars

For the year ended 31
Mareh 2023

For the vear ended 31
March 2022

I Cash flow from operating agtivities

Profit betore taxes 3338142 767128
Adpustments for:- )
Depreciation on fixed assets 3863350 108,840
BDeprecintion on investuients, ngt (44217 149409y
Amaortization of premium on Feld to Maturity lnvestment 207,016 [74921
Profit on sale & Redemption of HTM poufoho - 1137
Unrealised loss on external connmercial borrowings . 160,039
Write-ofT of non performing advansces 1827814 2193 834
Provision for standard advances and other continpencies (including loaling prosision) 288919 (I7:! is)
Provision for non performing advances (net of reversal) (1.128.850} 2,024.254
Loss on sale of fixed assets (Net) - (623)
Other provisions and write off 170,331 171,957
(1 9,265,908 5,593,604
Adfustments for:-
Pecrease in investments §99.293 5,363,028
(Increase) i advanges (31.091.648) (24504 4840
Increase in deposils 36.359,575. 25,666,144
{liicrease) in other assets (1,043,856) (389239}
Inerense m other liabilitics and provisions 1.907 8§32 1.745,69%
(i1} THN3E 196 5,241,702
Payment of Direct Taxes (iif) (707,104} (543,769)
MNet cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 15,58%,997 £3,291.562
I {Cash flow from/(used i) investing activities
Addition to Premises
Purchase of fixed assets mcluding capital work in progress (738,470} (1.466.733)
Proceeds from sale ol fixed assets .017 4,893
Purchase of held to maturity (HFM) securitics (net of sales) {6,177,077) (5,924 886
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) {6.931,530) (7,386,724}
11 {Caxh flow fromfused i) Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital (net of share 1ssue expenses) 12368 1466337
Net (repavimenis) from borrowings (2.224.590) (332864
Net cash flow (used in} / gencrated from financing activities {C) (2,211,328) 1,113,493
IV [Net increase in cash and cash cquivalents {A) + (B) + (C} 6,447,139 7,018,338
vV {Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18,716,491 EEG98. 160
Vi {Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 25,163,630 18,716,4%1
Notes to the Cash Flow Statements
Casly amd cash equivalents includes the following:
(5 (Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India (Refer Schedule 6) 14,920,566 17,978,972
(i) |Balance with banks and money at call and short notice {Refer Schedule 7 £3,243.064 737,519
Casl and cash equivalents at the end of the year 25,163,630 18,716,491

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set oul in Accounting Standard (AS) 3 - Cash Flow Statements specified under

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Sehedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

Schedule ! - Capital

(¥ in 'D00s)

Ay ut
31 Macrch 2023

As at
31 Mureh 2022

Authorised Capital

1,304,000,000 Equity shares of £10/- sach

(31 March 2022: 1,300,000,000 Equity shares of TH0/~ 2ach)
200,000,000 Preference shares of T16/ each

13.060.000

13,000,600

(31 March 2022: 208,600,000 Preference shares of "10/- each 2,030,000 2,060,600
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital
8935 904,663 Equity shares of T10/% each o cxags
(31 March 2022: 895,521,522 Equity shares of T§0/- cach) 939,047 8,955,215
TOTAL 8,959,047 8.535.213
Schedule 2 - Reserves and Surplus
{7 in 0005)
As at As ar

31 March 2023

3t Macch 2022

1. Statutory Reserve
Opening balence 1,146,856 993,202
Additien durng the year 1011254 133.654
Deduction during the year - -
Total 258,118 1,146,836
2. Capital Reserve
Qpening balance 04,247 17,335
Additior dusing the year -
Deduction during the vear - -
Total WL207 91,207
3. Shuare Premium
Opening balance 1.852,026 1,357,
Addition during the year 9436 1028,
Deduction during the vear - 33,
Totul 2.8010,462 452,
4. Invesiment Fluctuation Reserve
Opening balauce TI99 1NR072
Addition during the year (17.984) 2T
Deduetion during the vear - -
Total MEL3 T1.79Y
5. ESOP Reserve
Opetung balanee a4 -
Addition duting tha yeur 121934 63.873 |
Daduction during the vear 5,133 pECH
Torak £84.412 H3.614
6. Balunce in Profit and Loss Account 3685 145 2553704
TOTAL { 1+243+443+6) 11,844,159 6767731
Schedule 3 - Deposits
(T in 00U}
As at As at

3% Maceh 2023

31 March 2027

As {. Demand Deposkts

i} From banks §74 882 380,008
i1} Fram others 3,965,133 3.044.782
Totad 3830837 3624790
2. Savings Bank Deposits 24, 797322 15,908,036
3. Term Deposits
i Fram banks 36,663,154 23,229,159
i) From others 71,803,887 49,979,821
Totuf 08,464,041 T8.204,084
TOTAL(1tnd) 137,108,404 10074 1.826
B. i. Deposits of branches in India 137,101,406 100,741,826
ii. Depusits of braanches cutside India - -
TOTAL 137,108 460 100741 826




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedulcs forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 Macch 2023 {continued)

Schedule 4 - Borrowings

(L in '000s)

As at
30 March 223

Az at
At March 2022

i Borrowings in Indix
iy Resarve Bank of India
it} Other banks
it} Onber institutions and agencies
a} Government of India
b} Financial institutions
v} Capital instrements
2} Borrowing in the form of bonds and debennures *
(subardinated debt included in Tier 2 cupital)
v} Other barewings®*
Total borrowings in India
2. Barrowings outside fndia #
1j Capital instrumenis
) Unsecured redeemable debentures/bonds
(subordinated debt included in Tier 2 capital)
i) Debentuces
it} Other barmowings
Total barrowings outside India

1,500.00¢

19,342,900

2,550,000

94,8353
23,494,753

1,370,000

19,383,100

2,350,00¢

16,244
24,219,349

1.300,000

1,500,000

TOTAL(1+2}

23,494,733

13,719,349

Secured borcowings incfuded in 1 and 2 above

1,300.000

2,370,006

Refinance borrewings of 21,934.99 crore {31 March 2022: £1,958.51 crore)

# Borrawing from ouisids India include subordinated debt of NIL (21,500,064 thousands in year ended 31 March 2022} ip the nature of

Non Convertible Debeature
* Represents unsecured bonds and debentures
** Reprosenis payabie under lease obligation

Schedute § — Other Liabilities and Provisions

(T 05

As at
31 March 2023

As af
31 March 2022

I, Bills payable 1,472,274 436,448
X Tnter offtce adjustments (neth - -
3 Ister=st gesrued 4,081,133 31822477
4. QOthers (including provisions) 3,022,643 2,194,634
TOTAL{1tnd} 576036 4.453.553
Schedule 6 — Cash zad halsnces with Reserve Bank of Tndia
(% i TSy
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 Muarch 2822

TOTAL(1+2)

E. Cash o hand 1,373,303 K32.692
2 Balances with Reserve Bank of India

iy In current account 3,507,201 £ 504,280

i} in other accounts 4,530,006 12,040,060

§1.928,566 £7.978,972




YUtkarsh Smafl Finance Bank Limited
Schedutes forming part of the Balance Shicet as a1 31 March 2013 (continued)

Schedule 7 - Balance with banks and money at call 2od short nuotice

(T in 'DODs)
As at Asat
3t Murch 2823 31 March 2022
i. fn India
i) Balances with banks
z} In current accounts 514,352 702,881
bb In other depasit accouats 16,996 34,638
i1} Money at cali and short notice
a) With banks 306,040
B) With ¢ther institutions 12093518 -
Tota] i+ii} 13,243,064 737,519
2, Outside [ndia
In current accaunts - -
In ather deposits accounts - -
Money at call and shot notice - -
Totzl - .
TOTAL{I+2}) 13,243.064 731519
Schedule 8§ — {nvestments
{T n (His)
Ag at Ag at
31 March 2023 31 March 2622
1. investments in [ndia (uet of provisions)
i} Government secunities * 25,603,571 24 485,712
i) Other approved securitics - -
ii1) Shares - -
ivy Debentures and bonds - -
v) Subsidiaries / joint ventures - .
i} Others (cerificets of deposits and mual funds) 2.9%).651 1,993,506
Total 18,594.213 13,479,238
2, investments Outside India (oet of previsions}
1} Government seeurities - -
i) Subsidiariss / joint veniures B -
i) Others {gquity shares and bands) - -
Tatul - -
TOTAL{1+1} 18,594,223 13,479,238
2. Investiments
i} Gross valae of investments
a) In india 28,594,222
b} Quiside Indie - -
18,394,232 23,523,435
it} Provision for depreciation
@) In india - 44207
by Cruwside India - -
- 34287
Hi) Net value of investiments
a} In [ndia 28,594,222 23479238
b) Cuiside India - -
25594222 21479,238

" Include securities of 21 15.08 crare (31 March 2022: 2152.87 crore) pledged for cleating facilitics and margin requirement




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the Balznce Sheet as a1 31 Mavcch 2023 (continued)

Schedule % — Advances (net of provisions}

(2 in '000s)
As at As at
31 Mayrch 2023 31 March 2412
Al 1) Bills purchased and discounted - -
ii} Cash credits, overdrafts and loans repayable on demand 4,112,670 {,123501
i1} Term loans ** 126,574,985 101,158,170
Total 130,687,655 192,281,473
B. i) Secured by tangible assels {includes advances against fixed . .
deposits and book debis) 43,227,990 29,150,587
it} Covered by Bank/Government gearaniees 533 081
iii) Unsecured §7.439,112 73,124,503
Total EINSRT.055 102,281.473
C.I  Advances in India
i} Priosity sector 101,322,583 34,393,070
ii) Public scctor - -
iii) Banks 569,897 75,006 *
iv) (Hhers 28,395,173 17513403
Tatal 110,687,653 102,281,473
C.2  Advances Outside India
1} Duz from banks - -
ity Due from others - .
a) Bills purchases and discounted - -
b) Syndicated loans - -
¢} Others - -
Total - -
TOTAL{C.1 + C.2}) £34.687.635 EOLIR1.4TY

< Amount of Nil as on 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: 750 crores) comes under privrity sectar advance
=+ Net of loans outstanding under Inter bank pacticipation certificate 1604 crores (Previous Y ear T Nil}

Schedule i - Fixed Assets
(¥ in 00083

As at As
31 March 2823 31 MEarch 2022
1. Promises
iy At cost at 315t March of the preceding year 1122562 1202
it} Additipns during the year - 1.001,300
iit) Deductivns during the year - .
iv) Accumulated deprecistion to date {7,463 717
Tatal LI05.037 1.421,725
3. (rther Fixed Assets (including furniture amd fixtures)
i} At cost at 315t March of the preceding year 2,768,303 1,776,730
i) Additions during the year 718850 1,005,102
il Daductions during the year 61,270 13,529
iv} Accumulated depreciation to date 1,602,843 1,125,052
Total 1,433,044 1.642.231
3. Leased Asscts
i} At cost at 315t March of the preceding year 142 199 338,458
i) Additions during the yeas 20,499 19,694
iil} Deductions during the year - 3.950
v} Accumulated depreciation o date 185,833 154,055
Tatal 76,843 92,164
4. Capital Work in Progress 18.317 9,195
TOTAL(1tod) 3.033,23¢ 2865335




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 20123 (conrtinued)

Schedule 11 - Other Assets

{Tin '000s)
As at Asaf
3L March 2023 3% March 2022
I inter-office adjustment {net) - -
2, {nterest accrued 1,251,642 833 848
3. Tax Paid in advancefax deducted at source (aer of provision) - .
4. Stationery and stamps . -
5, Non-banking assets acquired in satisfuction of cloims - -
[ Deferred Tax Asset (net) 870,948 926,627
7. Others 1374079 1,436,686
TOTAL{fta7} 3,696,669 3,195,161
Schedule 12 - Cantingent Liabilities
{% in '000s)
As at As Ay
31 March 2823 38 Murch 2022
1. Cleims against the bank not acknowledged as debts - -
2 Liability for partly paid investment - -
A, Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contzacts - -
4. Liahility on account of outstanding derivative contracts - -
R Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
i) In India 235,111 173,300
iy Outside [ndia - -
6. Acceptances, endotsernents and other abligations - -
7. Qther itemy for which the bank is contingertly lable * 3,160,938 390,893
TOTAL(1taT) 3 416.049 564,192

* Includes capite} commitment of £30.66 crores (31 March 2022: 237.81 crores) and commitment towards irrevecable Undrawn Fund
Rased Credit facilities of T278.25 croces

51:9@.5&5 Y
1052158/ %;
WIDODS? J
s




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account for the year eaded 31 March 2023

Schedule §3 - Interest Earned

(£ i 'G00s)

For the vear ended 3|
March 2623

For the year ended 3
March 2072

i. Interest / discount on advances / bills 22,781,210 16,461,263
1. Income on investments 1503335 1,549,252
3. Interest on balance with Reserve Bank of India and
. —
Orther inter bank funds 762903 477,248
4. DOthers 330 363
TOTAL{1ted) 25,049,798 18,488,126
Schedule 14 - Other lucome
{T in 0009

For the year ended 31
Maych 2023

For the year ended 3
Mazrch 2022

i Comimnission, exchange and brokerage 852,996 368,628
2. Profit{Loss) on sale/redemption of Invesmrents (ret) {14,887) (133341
3. Profit/(Loss) on revaluation of invesmments 15,390 104,935
4. Profit/{ Loss) on sale of land, building and other assets (net) 441 625
3. Profitd Loss) on exchange stansaciions {net) - -
[N Income earned by way of dividends from Subsidizries / Associates and

tor Joint Venture abroad / in India ) )
7. Miscatlaneous Income 2139322 1,307 438
TOTAL (oD 2,993,062 1,848,334
Schedule |5 ~ Interest Expended

(% in '000s)

For the year ended 31
Murch 2023

Far the yeuar ended 31
Alarch 2022

1. Tnierest ea deposits
. Interest on Reserve Bank of Fadia 7 Inter-bank borrowings
3. Others

7343630
100373
1,809,486

5,750,674
6b,64%
2,036,306

TOTAL{Ita3)

9,759,484

TR79.625

Schedule 1§ — Operating Expenses

(% YOGst

For the your eaded 35
March 2623

For the vear ended 31
March 2022

1. Payments to and provisions for employecs 5.700,569 #4,298.253
I Rent, taxes and ligliting 380,757 463,504
3, Printing and stationery 123073 g9y
4. Advenisement and publicity 111 666 30,387
5. epreciation on Bank's property 384,550 348,340
&. Dhrzctor's fees allowances and expenses 28823 33501
7. Audisors' fees and expenses 19,549 16,435
8. Law charges 134,306 125,557
9. Postage, telegrams, telephones, ete. 235452 JEEREM
1¢. Repairs and maintenance 197,080 125615
i1, Insurance 116,364 75393
12, Other expenditure® 1,987,935 1,437,552
TOTAL (1to12) 4,506,136 7337495

o

* Includes professionat charges, service charges for core bapkinrsafiwyre and ATM, traveling and other expenses
A e




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Schedule 17 - Significant accounting policies

17.1 Background
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited (“Company” or “the Bank™), incorporated on 30 April 2016 in [adia, is a
Small Finance Bank (‘SFB’) engaged in providing banking and financial services and governed by the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949. The Bank had commenced its banking operations from 23 January 2017, Scheduled Bank
status  was accorded by Reserve Bank of India vide notification no. DBRNBD. (SFB-UMFL).
No.2689/16.13.216/2017-2018 dated 04 October 2017 and was published in the Gazette of India on 07 November
2017. The Bank is subsidiary of Utkarsk Core [nvest Limited (“the Holding Company™).

The Reserve Bank of [ndia ("RBE") issued license no. MUM: [25 on 25 November 2015 to the Company to carry
on business as SFB with cerfain terms and conditions. Pursuant to the condition atiached in the approval for small
finance bank, the Holding Company entered into a business transfer agreement ("BTA™ and transferred its micro
finance business to the Bank. Pursuant to the BTA all the assets and Habilities (except certain specified assets and
liabiiities} as at 2} January 2017 of the Holding Company were transfermed o the Bank at book value based on
slump sale basis for cash consideration of 68.51 crores. Pursuant 1o BTA, zll the employees of the Holding
Company {(except certain employees) were transterred to SFB on the same emplovment terms and rights granted
under employee stock option scheme of the Holding Company are continued in SFB. Resultant, non-convertible
debentures listed on the stock exchange were also transferred in the name of the Bank and a transfer was effected
by the exchange effective 03 May 2017,

17.2 Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention.
unless otherwise stated, and on accrual basis of accounting and the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 including the provisions of the Banking Regulation Act. 1949, the Master
Direction an Financial Statements - Presentation aad Disclosures issued by Reserve Bank of [ndia dated on August
30, 2021, as amended from time to time and various other orders/cirenlars/directions issued by the RBL in this
regard to the extent applicable and practices prevailing in the Banking industry in India and other accounting
principles generally accepted in [ndia.

17.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity wuh the Iadian GAAP requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that are considered in the reported amount of assets, labilities and disclosure of
contmgent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported income and expenses during the reporting
pertod. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements and the
management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actual results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompanying financial statements.
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

17.4 Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous
VBT,
The accompany flpancial statements have been prepared as prescribed under the histerical cost.




A

Revenue Recognition

a) Interest income on performing assets is recognised on accrual basis. Interest income on non-performing assets is
recognised on realisation;

b} For other than JLG, till 24 September 2021, recoveres in respect of all past due foan accounts including
classified as NPA is appropriated towards charges, interest, overdus and thereafler towards principal. From 23
September 2021 onwards except for Micro Finance (JLG) Loans and Relationship Management based products,
recoveries in respect of all EMI based performing assets is appropriated towards interest, principal of each EMI
followed by penal interest and then charges. For Non-pertorming assets, appropriation is made towards principal,
interest of each EMI followed by oldest penal interest due and then oldest charges for the product defined;

¢} For Micro Finance (FL.G) Loans recoveries would bz appropriated towards instalment(s) outstanding and on
partial collection appropriation will be in the sequence of first Interest camponent of oidest EMI foliowed by
Principai component of oldest EMI, and so on both for standard and NPA accounts;

d} Relationship Management Based products, recoveries is appropriated towards Outstanding;

e} Penal Interest or Overdue Principal Interest and charges are recognized on collection basits except in case of
Relationship Management based products where such penal interest or charges are recognized on acerual basis;

fy Loan processing fees collected from the borrowers is recognized over the tenure of the loan;

g) Documentation and monitoring charges collected from borrowers are accounted upfront when i becomes due;

h} Recoveries in respect of debts written off are recognized in the year in which such amounts is recovered and the
same are disclosed under “Other [ncome™;

1) Fees paid / received for priority sector lending certificates {PSLC) is recognised upfront;

) Profit / premiwm arising at the time of securitization / assignment of loan portfolio is amortized over the life of
the underlying loan portfolio / securities and any loss arising therefrom is recognized immediatety. Income from
tnterest strip (excess interest spread) is recognized in the profit and loss sccount net of any losses when redeemed
in cash. Interest retained under assignment of loan receivables is recognized on realization basis over the Lifs of the
enderiying loan portfolio;

k) Interest on term deposits s accrued on time proportion basis, using the underiying interest rate,

1)y Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenure of the instrument on a constant yield basis;

m) Dividend is accounted on an accrual basis when the right 1o receive the dividend is established;

n} Income from distribution of third party products is recognised on the basis of business bookad:

o) Recoveries in respect of purchase of Direct Assignment pools are to be approprizted as per appropriation
methodology followed by the oniginators; and

M All other fees are accounted tor as and when they become due and when service is rendered.

Advances

a} Accounting and Classification

Advances are classified as performing and non-performing (NPA) as per RBI cutdelines. Restructured asseis are
classified and provided for in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time. [n respect of
advances where resolution plan is under implementation or implemented under the RBI guidelines on “Resalution
Framework for COVID 19-related Swuress™ and "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises {(MSME} Sector -
Restructuring of Advances.

The Bank considers a restructured aceount as one where the Bank, for economic or legal reasons relating o the
borrower’s financial difficulty, grants to the borrower cancessiens that the Bank would not otherwise consider.
Restructuring would normally invelve modification of tenms of the advances / seeurities, which would generaily
include, among others, alteration of repayment period / repayvable amount / the amount of instalments / rate of
interest {due 1o reasons other than competitive reasons). Restructured accounts are classifled as such by the Bank
only uspon approval and implementation of the restructuring package. Necessary provision for diminution in the
fair value of a restructured account is made and classification thereof is as per the extant RB! guidelines. In
accordance with the RBI guidelines on the prudential framework for resolution of stressed assets and the resolution
framework for COVID-19 related stress, the Bank in accordance with its Board approved policy, carmied out one-
time sestructuring of eligible borrowers. The asset classification and necessary provisions thereon are done in
accordance with the said RB{ guidelines.




b) Inter Bank Participation Certificates
The Bank enters into Inter Bank Participation Certificate with Risk Sharing as issuing Bank and the aggregate
amount of participation are reduced from the aggregate loan outstznding,

¢} Provisioning

Provisions in respect of non-performing and restrucsured advances are made based on management’s assessment of
the degree of impairment of the advances subject to the minimum provisioning levels prescribed under RBI
guidelines with regard to the Prudential Norms on I[ncome Recognition, Asset Classification & Provisioning
prescribed from time te time.

The Bank also maintains provision on standard assets 1o cover potential credit Josses which are inherent in any
foan portfolic in accordance with RBI guidelines. However, provisioning rates prescribed by RBI are the
regulatory minimum, and Bank made additional provisions in respect of advances to stressed sectors of the
econony as approved by the Board from time to time. Provision made against standard assets is included in “Other
Liabilities and Provisions’.

Loans reported as fraud are classified appropriately as per relevant RBI guidelines and fully provided for
immediately without considering the value of security.

d) Floating Provisicn

The Bank recognises floating provision as per the Board approved policy, which is in addition to the specific,
contingent and general provisions made by the Bank. The floating provision will be utilised, with the approval of
Board and RBI, in case of contingencies which do not arise in the normal course of business and are excepticnal
and non-recurring in nature and for making specific provision for impaired loans as per the requircment of extant
RBI guidelines or any regulatory guidance / instructions. Floating provisions are netted off for NNPA Ratic and is
included in ‘Other Liabilitics and Provisions”,

Investments

Classification and valuation of Bank’s Investments is carried out in accordance with relevanr RBI
guidetines/directions and Fixed Income Money Marker and Derivatives Association (FIMMDA’Y and Financial
Benchmark india Private Limited {‘FBIL} guidelines prescribed in this regard from time to time.

a) Classification

Investments are classified into ‘Held for Trading” ("HFT’), “Available for Sale” (CAFS") and *Held to Maturity’
(EHTM) categories at the time of purchase.

{nvestments that are acquired with an istention to hold 1l maturity are classified as “HTM™.

[nvestments that are held primarily for sale within 90 days from the date of purchase are classified as “HF T
[nvestments, which are not classified in the above two categories, are classified as “AFS™. Further, as per the RBI
guidelines, HET securities, which remain unsold for a period of 90 days are reclassified as AFS securities.

The Bank foliows value date methed of accounting for purchase and sale of invesiments, except for Government of
India and state government securities where settiement date method of accounting is followed in accordance with
RBI muidelings.

For the purpose of disclosure in the financial statements, the [avestments ace classified under six groups a)
Governmient Securities b) Other Approved Securities ¢} Shares d) Debentures and Bonds @) Subsidiaries / Joint
Ventures and f) Others.

lavestments are classitied as pecforming or non-performing as per RBI guidelines. Non perfonming investments are
subjected to prudential norms for Classification, valuations and Operation of Investment Portfolio by Banks
prescribed from time to time.




b) Valuation

[nvestments classified as “Held to Maturity™ securities need not to be marked to market and will be carried at
acquisition cost, unless it s more thaa the fece value, in which the premium should be amortised over the period
remaining to maturity. Where in the opinion of the management, a diminution, other than temporary in the value of
investmtents classified under HTM has taken place, appropriate provisions are made

Investments classified as AFS and HFT are marked-to-market on a periodic basis as per relevant RBI guidelines.

The securities are valued scrip-wise and depreciation / appreciation is aggregated for each categpory. Net
appreciation in each category, if any, is ignored, while net depreciation is provided for. The book value of
individual securities is not changed consequent to the periodic valuation of investments.

Treasury bills, commercial papers and certificates of deposit are valued at carrying cost including the pro rala
discount accrued for the holding period.

Quoted investments are valued at traded quoted price available on the recognised stock exchanges, subsidiary
general ledger account transactions are valued as per the price list of RBI or prices declarad by Primary Dealers
Association of India ("PDAIL"} jointly with FEMMDA / FBIL applicable as at the balance sheet date. For deriviag
market value of unquoted fixed income securities (other than Central and State Government securities), yields /
mark-up rates (reflecting associate credit risk) declared by the FIMMDA / FBIL are considered.

Quoted Mutual Fund units are valued as per stock exchange quotes and un-quoted mutua} fund units are valuad at
{ast available re-purchase price or Net Asset Value where re-purchase price is not available.

c) Disposal of investments

Profit / Loss on sale of investments under the aforesaid three categonies is recognized in the Profit and Loss
account. Cost of jnvestments is based on the weighted average cost method. The profit from sale of investment
under HTM category. net of taxes and transfer to statutory reserve is appropriated from Profit and Loss account 1o
“Capital Reserve” in accordance with the RBI Guidelines.

d} Transfer between categories

Transfer of investments between categories is accounted in accordance with the extant RBI guidelines:

a} Transfer from AFS/HET ro HTM is made at the lower of book value or market value at the time ol transfer,

b) Transfer from HTM to AFS/HET is made at acquisition price/ amormised cost if originally placed in HTM at par
or at a discount and at amortised cost if originally placed in HTM at a premiun.

¢} Transfer from AFS to HFT category or vice-versa is made at book value and the provision for the accumulated
depreciation, if any, held is transferred to the provisions for depreciation agaminst the HFT securities or vice-versa

e} Repurchase and Reverse repurchase transactions

Repurchase {Repe’) and reverse repurchase (‘Reverse Repo’) transactions including liquidity adjustment facility
{with RBI} are accounted for as borrowing and lending transactions respectively. Accerdingly, securities given as
coliateral under an agreement io repurchase them continue o de held under the investment account of the Bank
and the Bank would continue to accrue the coupon/discount on the security during the repo period. The Bank
continues to value the securities sold under repo as per the investment classification of the security. Borrowing
cost on repe fransactions is accounted for as interest expense and income on reverse repd Lransactions are
accounted for as interest income.

) Broken period interest, brokerage etc.
Broken period interest and costs such as brokerage paid at the time of acquisition of the security are charged to the

Profit and Loss account.

¢} Investmeat Fluctuation Reserve.

Out of net protits samed during the year, transfer is made to Investment Fluctuation Reserve, for an amount not
less than the lower of the (a) net profit on sale of investments during the year (b} net profit for the year less
mandatory appropriations, till the balance in such Investment Fluctuation Reserve reaches a level of at least 2% of
the ageregate HFT and AFS portfolio. Draw down from the Investment Fluctuation Reserve has been made in
accordance with the applicable RBI guidelines.




Fixed assets and depreciation / amortisation

Tangible assets

Tangible fixed assets are accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and all other direetly attributable expenditures towards
acquisition and installation of assets before it is ready for commercial use. Subsequent expenditure meurred on
assets put to use is capitalised cnly when it increases the future benefit / functioning capability from / of such
assets.

Tangible fixed assets under construction and tangible fixed assets acquired but not ready for their intended use will
be disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Capital work in progress includes cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use and also includes
advances paid to acquire fixed assets.

Depreciation is provided as per straight-line method from the date of additior over the estimated useful life of the
asset. For assets purchased/ sold during the year, depreciation is being provided on pro rata basis by the Bank.
Depreciation on assets sold during the vear is charged to the Profit and Loss account up to the date of sale. Assets
costing less than 3,000 are fully depreciated tn the year of purchase. If the management's estimate of the useful
life of a fixed asset at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining usefu! life on a subsequent review is
shorter, then the depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on management’s estimate of the useful
life/retmaining useful life. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used, fairly reflect its estimate
of the useful lives and residual values of fixed assets which are ta accordance with lives prescribed under Schedule
il of Companies Act, 2013.

Leaschold improvements are amortised on straight line basis over the primary period of the lease or the estimated
useful Jife of the assets, whichever 1s lower.

Losses arising from retirement ot gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost are
recognized in the Profit and Loss account.

Intangible assets

[ntangible assets that are acquired by the Bank are measured initizily at cost. The cust of an intangible asset
comprises its purchase price including after deducting rrade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable eost of
bringing the item to @15 working condition for its intended use following initial recognition. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried af its cost less any accwnulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss, Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits from
the specific asset to which it relates.

[ntangible assets are amortized in the Profit and Loss account over their estimated useful lives from the date they
are available for use based on the expecied pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the asset. infangibie
assets are amortized on straight tine basis. Computer software are amortized on straight line basis over their
estimated useful life of three vears.For assets purchased/ soid during the year, amortisation is being provided on
pro rata basis by the Bank.

Impairment of Assets

in accordance with Accounting Standard 28- Impairment of assets, the Bank assesses at each balance sheer date
whether there is any indication of impairment of assets based on internal / external factor 1f any such indication
exists, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of the asser. [f such recovarable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generzting unit to which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount will be reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss end is
recognized in the Profit and Loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost, Depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life
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Foreign Currency transactions

Transactions denominated m foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Exchange differences anising on foreign currency transzctions settled during the year are recognised
in the Profit and Loss account. Income and Expenditure items are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the date of the transaction,

Muonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the balance sheet date based on
exchange rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers® Association of India (‘FEDAIL') and the resultant exchange
differences are recognized in the Profit and Loss account.

Derivatives

The Bark recoguises all detivative contracts (other than those designated as hedges) at fair value, on the date on
which the derivative contracts are entered into and are re-measured at fair value as at the Balance Sheet or
reporting dates.

Derivatives are classified as assets when the fair value is posizive (positive marked to market value) or as Habilities
when the fair value is negative {negative marked to market value). Changes in the fair value of derivatives other
than those designated as hedges are recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

Derivative contracts designated as hedges are not markad to market unless their underlying transaction is marked
to market. In respect of derivative contracts that are marked to market, changes in the market value are recognised
in the Profit and Loss account ia the relevant period.

The Bank identifies the hedged item (asset or liability} at the inception of the transaction itself. Hedge
effectivencess is ascertained at the time of the inception of the hedge and periodically thereafter. Gains or losses
arising from hedge ineffectiveness, if any, are recognised in the Profit aad Loss account, Contingent liabilities on
account of derivative contracts denominated in foreign currencies are reported at closiag rates of exchange notified
by FEDAI a3 at the balance sheet date.

Employee benefits

a. Defined Contribution Plan ~

The Bank makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to Government administered
provident fund scheme, which is a defined conmibution scheme. The Bank's contribution is recognised as an
expense in Profit and loss account during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b. Defined Benefit Plan and Compensated absences-

The Bank provides for gratuity. a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employzes. Grotuity i3 covered
under a scheme administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India through gratuity trust (Group Gratuily
scheme) and the contributions made by the Bank to the scheme is recognised in the Profit and loss account. The
liabtlity recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The calculution of the Bank’s
obligation under the plan is performed annuaily by gqualified independent actuary using projected unit credit
method. Actuarial gains and losses arising during the vear {s immediately recognised in the Profit & Loss account.
Compensated absence, 18 a fong-term employee benefit, and accrued based on an actuarial valuation done as per
projected unit credit method at the baiance sheet date, carmied out by 2r independent actuary. Compensared
ahsance is covered under a scheme administered by Life Insurance Corporation of [ndia. Acwuarial gains and losses
are recognized in fisll in the Profit and Loss account for the peniod and are not deferted.

Share Issue Expeunses
Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securitics Premium Account in terms of Section 52 of the Companies Act,

2013.




Employee Stock Option Scheme

The holding company of the Bank has formulated Employees Stock Option Scheme. The scheme provides that
subject to continued employment with the Bank, employees of the Bank are granted an optien lo acquire equity
shares of the Holding Company that may be exercised within a specified period. The compensation cost for all
options granted to employees by the Holding company is computed based on valuation of shares of Holding
company as per indrinsic value method and is amortised over the period of vesting. Measurement and disclosure of
the Employee Share-based Payment Schemes are done in accordence with the Guidance Note on Accounting for
Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).

The Bank has formulated Employees Stock Option Schemes, and the policy will be applicable to all scheme. The
Bank measures compensation cost relating to employee stock options using the Fair value method as per the
Guidance Note on ‘Accounting for Employee Share based Payments’ issued by the ICA{ and same is charged to
Profit & Loss Account.

Lease transactions

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or an operating lease. Assets taken on {ease where the
Banik acquires substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance lcase is capitalised at the commencement of the lease at an amount equal to lower of its fair value and
present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of lease liability so as to achieve constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabilicy. The
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are reflected as booowings. Finance charges are recognised 25 finance
costs in the profit and loss account.

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership over the Iease term
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease renfals are recognised as and when the payments are made over
the lease terms.

Taxatien

[neoime tax comprises the current sax (i.e. amount of tax for the peried, determined in accordance with the income
Tax Act. 1961 and the rules framed there under) and the net chanee in the deferred tax asset or Hability for the
period {reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable inceme for the
period).

Provision for current income-tax is recognized in accordance with the provisions of the fncome Tax Act, 1961 and
is made annually based on the tax lability after taking credit for tax allowances and exemptions.

The current 1ax, deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax hability or asset 15 recomnised
using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacied by the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax asscts are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in
future. However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax
assets are recognised only if there is virtual cenainty (supported by convincing evidence of {uture taxable tncome}
of realization of such assets.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that 13
reasonably/virtually certain 1o be realized.

Provisions and contingenacies

The Bank recognises a provision when there is present obligation as a result of 2 past event that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possibie oblization or a present obligation in respact of which
the likelihood of outilow of resources is remore, fo provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewad at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it ts no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
Contingent assets are mot recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is vinually certain that an inflow of cconomic beneflts will arise, the asset and related income
are recognized in the period in which the change occurs,
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Earaings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the vear attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilation thal could occur if contracts to issuc gquity shares were
exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed using the weighted average
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results
are anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RB{, balances with other banks and money at call
and short notice.

Cash Flow Statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or pavients
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating.
investing and financing activities of the Bank are segregated.

Segment reporting
The disclosures relating to segment reporting is done as per guidelines issued by the REI

Priority Sector Lending Certificates

The Bank vide RBI circular FIiDD.CO.Plan BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated 07 Apnil 2016 trades in Prionity Sector
portfolio by selling or buying Pricrity Sector Lending Certificates (PSLCs). There is no transfer of risk on loan
assels in these transactions. The fee paid for purchase of the PSLC is treated as an "Expense” and the fee received
for the sale of PSLCs is recognised upfronr and is treated as ‘Miseellaneous Income’.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

Schedule 18

18.1.1 Regulatory Capital

Capital Adequacy Ratio is computed as per operating guidelines issued by RBI for Smail Finance Banks and amended thereafter.
(% in crore)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i) Common Equity Tier 1 {CET) capital 1,844.82 1,420.76
i) Additional Tier | capital - -
11i) Tier | capital {i +11) 1,844.82 1,420.76
) Tier 2 capital 241.23 275.70
v) Totai capital (Tier 1+Tier 2} 2.086.05 1,696.46
vi} Totai Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) 10,1058 7,357.03
vii) Common Equity Tier | (CET) capitai ratio (%0} 18.25% 18.08%
viii) Tier [ capital ratio (%) 18.25% 18.08%
ix) Tier I capital ratio (%) 2.39% 3.51%
X} Capital to Risk Weizhted Assets Ratio (CRAR) (%) 10.64% 21.539%
xi) Leverage Ratio 921% 9.49%

.. Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of
Xit} L. . - -
[ndia in public sector banks
<iii) i\mount of paid-up equity capital raised during the year 681 150.02
Xiv) Amount of additiona! Tter [ capital raised - -
x¥) Amount of Tier [f capital raised (Refer 18.1.2) } )
below)

* includes share premium 20.43 crores {31 March 2022: T102.84 crores against the fTresh issue of equity shares)

Notes:

1. The Bank has {ollowed Basel I Capital Regulations dated 01 July 2013 and amended theceafier for the purpose of Capital Adequacy Ratio in
accordance with the operating suidelines for smail finance banks as issued by RBI on 08 Qctober 2016,

2. The Bank has followed Master Cireular No. DBR.No.BP.BC.4/21.06.601/2015-16 on Prudential Guidelines on Capital Adequacy and Market
Discipline — New Capital Adequacy Framework {(NCAF) issued by RBT dated 01 July 2015 for the purpose of computing Capiral Adequacy
Ratio.

3. As per RBL letter DBRNBD. No. 4393/16.15.218/2617-18 dated 08 November 2017, it is clartfied that no sepacate capital charge is beiny
prescribed for market risk and operational risk for the time being,

18.1.2 Tier If Capital
The Bank has not acquired Baset il compliant debt capital instruments during the year ended 31 Mareh 2023 and 31 March 2022,

18.1.3 Capital Infusion

During the vear ended 31 March 2023, the Bank has issued 213,025 and 170,116 equity shares to employess and MD & CEQ respectively under
ESOP scheme having face value of 10 each at a premium of ¥17.00 and 4.0 respectively for cash aggregating 0 8,135,000, Accordingly,
share capital increased by {38.31.,410 and share premium increased by ¥43,03,590.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Bank has issued 47,169,309 equity shares as fresh issue and 17,844 equity shares under ESOP scheme
having face value of 210 each at a premium of 221.80 and T4.01 respectively for cash aggregating to 21,300,249,920.

{Z in crore except share data)

For the year ended For the vear ended
Puarticuiars 31 Afar-23 31-Mar-22
Number ol shares Amount MNumber of shares Amount
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 895,521,522 895.52 848,333,869 84833
Shares issused during the year 383,141 (.38 47.187.633 47.19
Qutstanding at the end of the vear 895,904,663 895.90 895,521,522 RU5.52

18.1.4 Draw down from Reserves
The Bank has made draw down during the year ended 31 March 2023 of T1.80 crore from Invesrment Fluctuation Reserve due to reduction in

AFS and HFT investment porlfoizo (31 March 2022: 214,19 crorc)




Utkarsh Small Finance Kank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financiz| statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.2.1 Asset Liability Management

a} Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabifities is given below: (2 in crorz)
As at 31 March 2023
Over 2
2w M8 1415 e 30 31 Day: months Qver  3Over  6{Over f Over 3 Over 3
{ day t 2 JImenths to{months tefyvear to 3|years to Total
days days Days ) 3 - ! years
months G imonths H year yeurs 3 years
rnonths
Deposits 68753 378401 331431 26974 405421 466.6172227.07 | 253582 16,353,741 19839 34.77 13,7014
Loans & Advaaces® 91.33 93 14076 284551 GOLA3 T SRR8B T LVIEUA 1309243 1 4323801 650,17 | 147182 13.068.77
investments 141921 237153 130.34 63.76 92.77 | 10178 38478 452251 L177.96 1 63.96 L3.65 1,859,427
Borrowings ** 0.02 0.08 15.72 024 4403 43.33 31669 43340 1 1.234.9] | 224 40 13.63 234948
Fareign currency Assets - - - - - - h - - - - -
Foreign currency Liahilities - - - - - - - - - - - ~
As at 31 March 2822
30 Daps| O Clover  slover 6fover  1jOver 3
o 38 e 115 w3007 VM menths A el “ over s
1 day e 2 months tejmonths wlvear o Y years 1o YTotal
i days days Days to 3 M M yoars
months 6 moaths {1 year years 3 years
months
Deposits 63,33 | 41234 ) 12061 799.01 | 302385 403541 1.605.22 1225334 { 380565 4876 3821 10.674.18
Loans & Advances® 129.88 93.74 7946 1 269481 470371 47482711,421.36 (2602861348136 151379 1 686831 1022813
fnvestments 37.71 83123 166.84§ 182.56] 14797 80.691 2631.335| 492847 884471 2.7 35.76 1.347.92
Borrowings ** 041 407 G.08 0.18 17001 167001 26435] 5257311260611 4144 19536 257193
Foareion curreacy Assels - - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign currency Liabilities - - - - - - - - - - - >

¢ amounts disclosed are net off provision for non-performing assers
** includes foreign currency tiabilities N1t {31 March 2022; Nil )

Nowe:
|.Classification of assels und labilities under the different matrity buckets is bused on the same estimates and assumptions s used by the Bank for compiling the retumn
submitted 1o the RBY, which has been relied upon by the auditors,
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Utkarsh Small Fisance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial staterments for the year ended 31 March 2623

18.2.2 Liguidity Coeverage Ratio (LCR)

Qualitative disclosure around LCR

Liguidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is a global minimum standard for Bank’s fiquidity. The ratio aims to ensure that a bank las an
adequate stock of unencumbered High - Quality Liguid Assets {HQLA} that can be converted into cash easily and immediately 10
meet its liquidity needs for a 30 calendar days of severe liguidity stress scenario.

The LCR is a ratio of High Quality Liquid Unencumbered Assets (HQLA) to total estimated net outflows over a stressed period of
30 calendar days.

The net cash outflows are calculated by applying RBI prescribed outflow factors to the various categories of Liabilitics {deposits,
unsecured and secured wholesale borrowings), as well a3 to undrawn commitments and derivative-related exposures, partially offset
by inflows from assets maturing within 30 days.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk. The Board at overall level decides the
liquidity risk tolerance/limits and accordingly decides the strategy, policies and procedures of the Bank for managing liguidity nsk.

The Board has constituted Risk Management Committee (RMC), which reports to the Board, and consisting of Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ) /Chairman and certain other Board members. The Committee is respousible for evaluating the overall nisks faced by
the Bank including tiquidity risk. The petential interaction of fiquidity risk with other risks is included in the risks addressed by the
Risk Management Committee.

At the executive level, Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) ensures adherence to the risk toleranceflinmits set by the
Board as well as implementing the liquidity risk management strategy of the Bank in line with Bank's risk management objectives
and risk tolerance. A dedicated desk within Treasuey function of the Bank is responsibie for the day-to-day / intra-day liquidiry
management.

ALCO of the Bank channelizes various business segments of the Bank to target good quality asset and lisbility profile to meet the
Bank’s profitability as well as Liguidity requirements with the help of robust MIS and Risk Limit architecture of the Bank.

The Bank has been maintaining HQLA (Level 1) primarily in the form of Excess CRR, excess SLR investments over and above
mandatory requirement.
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Utkarsh Smail Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2623

18.2.3 Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR)

Qualitative disclosure around NSFR

In the backdrop of the global financial crisis that started in 2007, the Basel Commitice on Banking Supervision (BCBS) proposad
certain reforms to strengthen giobal capital and liguidity regulations with the objective of promoting a more resilient banking sector.
In this regard, comes into picture — “Basel {TI: Intemational framework for liquidity risk measurement, standards and monitoring”
which presented two minitum standards, viz., Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net $table Funding Ratio (NSFR) for funding
Tiquadity.

The NSFR is defined as the amount of available stable funding celative to the amount of required stable funding. “Available siable
funding™ (ASF) is defined as the portion of capital and liabilities expected to be reliable aver the time horizon of one year. The
amount of stable funding required {"Required stable funding”) (RSF) of a specific institution is a function of the Hquidity
characteristics and residual maturities of the various assets held by that institution as well as those of its off-balance sheet (OBS)
exposures.

Minimum Requirement: ASF(Available Stable Funding)/RSF(Require Stable Funding)>=100. The Bank is required to maintain the
NSFR on an ongoing basis on a standalone basis. The minimurmn NSFR requirement set out in the RBI guideline effective October 1,
2021 15 100%.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk. The Board at overall level decides the
tiquidity risk tolerance/limits and accordingly decides the strategy, policies and procedures of the Bank for managing liquidicy risk.

At the exccutive level, Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCG} ensures adherence to the risk tolerance/limits set by the
Board as well as implementing the liquidity sk management strategy of the Bank ia line with Bank’s risk management objectives
and risk tolerance. A dedicated desk within Treasury function of the Bank is responsible for the day-to-day / intra-day liquidity
management.

In the backdrop of the global finencial crisis that started in 2007, the Basel Comnuuee on Banking Supervision {BCBS) proposed
certain reforms to strengthen global capital and liquidity regulations with the ebjective of promoting a more resilient banking
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 3{ March 2023

Quantitative Disclosures
Following is the quantitative disclosures relating to NSFR for the year ended 31 March 2023, wherein the amounts are average of daily
{% in crore)

NSFR Disclosure
Unweighted value by residual maturity Weizhted value
No maturity ] < 6 months | 6 months to < Iyr = 1yr
ASFE ftem - : e - R R
1{Capital: {2+3) 2,000.40 - - - 2.600.40
2{Regulatory capital 2,000.40 - - - 2.000.40
330ther capital instruments - - - - -
4 Retail depos':ts and deposits from small business } _ 4,458.33 R $,157.58
custormers: {3+6)
3| Stable deposits - - 2.901.70 - 1.736.62
6| Less: stable deposits - - 1,536.63 - 1,400.94
7| Wholesale funding: (8+9) - - 5,762.43 - 2,851.21
§|Operationat deposits - - 4,830.22 - 2,413.11
9{Other wholesale funding - - 872.21 - 436.10
10{Other liabilities: (11+12) - - 1.452.00 5.896.47 3.896.47
L H{NSFR derivative liabilitics - - - - -
12 Alfl other lmb.:iltics and equity not included in the 3 3 1,052.00 5.896.47 5.496.47
above calegorics
13 Total ASF (1+d+7+1) 1,000.48 - 11,212.76 5,896.47 14.905.66
RSF Items
14iTotal NSFR high-quality tiquid assets (HQLA) 1,192.06 - 1.813.54 - 9%.63
15 Deposlns held ar other financial institutions for } ) 6474 i 3137
operational purposes
Performing loans and securities: - 1
- 37. JB11. . 94238
16 (17+18+19+21+23) 487.39 11,812.06 £1.38 7413
7 Performing loans to financial institutions secured by ) 24730 } i 1111

Level 1 HQLA

Performing loans to financial institutions secured by
18inon-level I HQLA aad unsecured performing loans - - 306.35 - 15318
to financial mstimwutions

Performing loans to nonfinancial corporate clients.
loans to retail i%lld small business CuS(On]Crfi. and 11,505.71 139 2716.09
loans to sovercigns, central banks, and PSEs, of]
which:

With a risx weight of less than or equal to 35%
20junder the Basel 1l Standardised Approach for credit - - - - .
risk

21iPerforming residential mortgages, of which: - - - - R
With a risk weight of less than or equal o 33%
22}under the Basel 11 Standardised Approach for credit - - - - -
risk

Securities that are not in default and do not qualify)
23[as HQLA, including exchange traded equities - - - - .

24| Other assets: (sum of rows 25 to 29) - - - 560.12 860.12
25[Physical waded commodiies, including sold - - - - .

Assets posted as initial margin for denvative
26}contracts and contributions to defaulr funds of CCPs - N - - -

27INSFR derivative assers - . - _ _
NSFR  derivative liabilities before deduction  of]

28 - .
variation margin posted - - - . -
All other assets not included in the above categorics
» - - - 860.12 R0 12
30[Off-balance sheel ttemns - - 1.183.05 - 38.64
31| Total RSF 1,192.06 487.39 14,873.39 871.51 8,984.1%
163.91%

32INet Stable Funding Ratio (%}
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.3.2 Movement of Provisions for Depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve

{Zin crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on
i) investmends
a) Opening balance 4.42 19.36
b) Add: Provisions made during the vear - 423
¢) Less: Write off/write back of excess provisions during the year 4.42 19.536
d) Closing balance - 4,22
ii) Movement of Investment Fluctuation Reserve
a) Opening balance 7.78 18.5]
b Add: Amount transferred during the year - 3,066
c) Less: drawdown during the year 1.80 14.19
d) Closing balance 5.98 7.78

Closing balance in IFR as a percentage of closing balance of
iit) investments in AFS and HFT/Current category 2.00% 2.00%

18.3.3 Sale and trans{ers to/from HTM category

For the year ended 31 March 2023, there has been no sale from and transfer to/ from, the HTM category in excess of 3% of
the book value of the investments held in the HTM category at the beginning of the year.
For the year ended 31 March 2022, there has been no sale from and transfer to/ from, the HTM category in excess of 3% of
the book value of the investments held in the HTM category at the beginning of the year.

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, Where the value of sales and transfers of securities to/from HTM category exceeds 5
per cent of the book value of investments held in HTM category at the beginning of the year, banks shall disclose the marizet
value of the investrents held in the HTM category. The excess of book value over market value for which provision s rot
made shall also be disclosed. The 3 per cent threshold referred to above shall exclude:
i} The one-time transfer of securities to/from HTM category with the approval of Board of Directors undertaken by banks at
the beginning of the accounting year.
it) Direct sales from HTM for bringing down SLR holdings in HTM category consequent to a downward revision i SLR
requirements by RBL
ii1) Sales to the Reserve Bank of India under liquidity management operations of RBI like Open Market Operations (OM ™))
and the Government Securities Acquisition Programme (GSAP).
iv) Repurchase of Government Securities by Government of India from banks under buyback / switch operations.
v) Repurchase of State Development Loans by respective state governments under buyback / switch operations.
eReserve Bank of India.
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{Utkarsh Smal Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2623

18.3.4 Non-SLR investment portfolio
Non-performing non-SLR investments

(% in crore)

Particulars Asg at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Opening balance - -
b) Add: Addition during the year since st April - -
c) Less: Reduction during the above year - -
d) Ciosing balance - -
e} Total provision held - -

18.3.5 Issuer Composition of Non-SLR investments:

Issuer composition as at 31 March 2023 of non-SLR investments

(% in crore}

Sk No. |Issuer Amount

Extent of Private
Placement

Extent of ‘Below
Investment Grade’
Securities

Extent of ‘Unrated’
Securities

Extent of ‘Unlisted’
Securities

PSUs -

Fls 24 .60

Banks 274.46

Private Corporaies -

Subsidiaries/ Joint
ventures

ShE Wb [l ] -

Others -

Provisions held towards
depreciation

—~J
1

Total 299.06

[ssuer composition as at 31 March 2022 of non-SLR investments

(% in crore)

Extent of Private

Extent of ‘Below

Extent of ‘Unrated’

Extent of ‘Unlisted’

Si. No. {Issuer Amount Placement Iuvestmen.t .Grade’ Securities Securities
Securities
] PSUs - - - - R
2 Fis 95.90 - - - R
3 Banks 14967 - - - R
4 Private Corporates 4990 - - - -
- Subsidiarias/ Joint i ) ) ] ]
ventures
6 Others - - - -
2 Provési‘on.s held towards 0.00 i i i ]
depreciation
Total 299.47 - - - .
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.3.6 Repo/Reverse Repo/VMSF Fransactions for the year ended 31 March 2023 (1n Face Value Terms)

(2 in crore)

Minimum Maximum Daily average .
. . . . . . >, |Outstanding as on 31
Sl. No. Particulars outstanding during | outstanding during | outstanding during Murcht:’ﬂZ}
the vear the year the year -

A Securities sold under repo/MSF

1, Government securitiss [44.53 228.36 22072 144.53
ii. Corporate debt securities - - - -
iil. Any other securities - - - -
B Securities purchased under reverse repo

i, CGovernment securitics - §,364.95 23713 -
i Corporate debt securitics - - - -
1L Any other securities - - - -

Repo/Reverse Repo/MSF Transactions during the year ended 31 March 2022 (1a Face Value Terms)

{Z 1n crore)

Minimum Maximumn Daily average .
: . , . . . . 10utstanding as on 31
Si. No. Particulars outstanding during | outstanding during { outstanding during March 2022
the year the year the year

Securities sold under repo/MSF
i. Government securities 83.64 1.421.39 559.20 226.90
1. Corporate debt securities - . . -
iii. Any other securilies - - - -

Securities purchased under reverse repo
i Govemnment securitizs 0.91 £.726.57 668.92 1,202.39

Corporate debt securities

iii.

Ay other sccurities

(i) The days on which there were Nil outstanding have been ignored while arriving at the amount of minimum outsiznding during the vear.

(i) Actual number of days of transactions have been considered in computation of daily average outstanding during the year,

seirmeasqount of funds borrowed or lent have been disclosed in the wbles above




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedutes forming pact of the findncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.4 Asset Quality
18.4.1 Classification of sdvances and previsions held {% in crore)

As at 31 March 1023
Particulars Non-performing Advances
Standard Advances Subestandard | Doubtluf |Lass Total Noa-perferming Total
Advances
{iy Gross Standard Advances and NFAs
Opening balance 9,982.50 (15.80 32.36 ~ 638 16 10,634.72
Add: Additiens during the year : 2 Lo S : 321.09
Less: Reductiens during the vear * A : o 2 73114
Clesing bulance # 1292361 352.67 78.43 - 431,50 1333711
* Reductions in Gross MPAs due 0 ; :
{i)Up - gradations g ! 26011
(i) Recoveries {excluding recoveries made fromn up-graded e > 9483
accounts) % |
(iii} Technical/ Prudential Write-o{fs : 7 . 369.59
{iv) Wirire-offs / Waiver other than those under {iii) above £ = ) 13.1%
[ Provisions {excluding Floating Provisions)
Cpeaing balance of provisions held 48.62 37039 3228 - 402 58 131.50
Add: Fresh provisions made during the year i 7 o 474.36
Less: Excess provision reversed/ Write-off loans ** J : s 388 .60
Closing balance of provisions held 53.23 210.63 7771 - 288,34 35139
(] Net NPAs
Opening balance 2 243,50 0.03 - 23580 4 2 D E
Add: Fresh additions during the year : i Ladiins {36.15) *=* i :
Less: Reductions during the vear PRl S h e ; 2 g 149,14 i
Closing balance LR 34204 12| - 30,51 ==ve
(iv) Flusting Provision
Openiny balance
Add: Additiona provisior made during the vear
Less: Amaunt deawdown during the vear
Closin: bufasce of floates provision
(v} Technical writewofls and the cecoveries made Thereonn
(1) Oncning balance Teohnicalr Prudentia) writicn-ofig : ror
aCCOuniy
(b} Add: Techmucal/ Prudential write s duringe the year
(o) Lessr Mecovertex mods fom  previously technicad
prudentia] written-off accounts during the year ***+e”
{d) Closing balance

G DA
P & ?Aﬂ@;




As at 31 March 2422
Particulars Standard Advances Non-performing Acilvunces : .
Sub-standard [Doubt{ul iless Tutal Nen-performiag otal
Advances
[6)] Gross Standard Advances and NPAs
Opening balance 8,100.39 311.04 4.24 - 31528 841367
Add: Additions during the vear - ; ke X ! 63643
Less: Reductons dusing the vear * 2 N : 323.35
Closing balance 9.9%2.56 615,30 32.36 - 648,16 10,630.72
* Reductions in Gross WPAs due to e i x :
(i)lJp -~ gradatiens - it L 51
(if) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from up-graded c
accounts) = 3948
(iiiy Technical/ Prudential Write-offs : 219.38
(iv) Write-offs / Waiver other than those under (iit) above 260
{it} Provisions {(axcluding Floating Provisious}
Opening balance of pravisions held 3833 194.56 4.24 - 195,80 237.13
Add: Fresh provisions made during the year : : 47332
Less; Excess provision roversed! Write-ofl loans ** 268.34
Closing balance of provisions held 43.92 37330 32.28 - 402,38 431.50
Gid) Net NPAs
Cpening balance i ; 1§6.48 - -+ 08,8+«
Add: Fresh additions duging the year L7944 = v
Less: Reductions during the vear ‘ h 5241
Closing bafance : 243.30 0.08 - 235.80 mrEe
(iv] Floating Provision
Opetiing balance o . ErE]
Add: Additivnal provision made during the year S : 2 ! 2.1
£.ess: Amount drawdown during the vear : ot ! : : -
Closing balance of floating provision 9.78
{v} Technical write-offs and the recoveries made thercon ¥
{a) Opening balance  Technical! Prudentis! written-of - T E Lo e 110,54
ACCOUNTS TR : L
(b} Add: Techaical Prudential writc-ofis during the vear : ‘; S ] s : 21438
{(2) Less: Recoveries made from  previously techuical St o it : e & ; s 9 36
rudential wiinign-afl accounts during the vear Al : ! : e -
(d} Clasing halance i e B 43046
T Wnite back noludes exvess provison 2207.03 crores and Reversal wn account of write off 136939 crores {31 March 2022 Write back inclides excess provision 149,15

crores and Reversal nn account of write it 221955 cerss)

cex not off flaating provisions amouating to €978 crores {31 March 2012: Z7.67 crores)

wxxs nop i oating provisions amounting to $82.87 crores {31 March 2022: 221 crores)

sE=ke e off foating provisions amounting lo 29263 erores (31 March 2022 £9.78 crores)

wxrten Nened of with moratarium interest capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2023 213,38 crores fur contracts already written ofl as on 31 Marsh 2022,

The movement of NPA and provision for NPA [excluding write oif} does met inchude ageounts clagyifizd a8 NPA and were upgraded during the year ended 5§ March 2021
The closing NPA Provision af 31 March 2022 includes provision agains: {raud ¢
During the yeur ended Mareh 31, 2022, with effect from January 2022 the Bank s
which is in line with RBI guidelines. The Impaet of such change resulted provisioning of £3.05) crores for the year ended 31 Mureh 2623 {3312 crores fuor the gurartar
ended 31 March 2022).

4 Closing balnce is net of IBPC of 3600 erares as on 31 March 2021 (31 March 2012 Nil)

s amounting to 12.6% crores.
sed its Non-Pertorming Asset (NPA) provisioning policy i relation io secured portialio

Ralios {in %) As at Asa

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Gross NPA to Gross Advances 3.23%% 5.10%
Netf NPA 1 Net Advances .39% 13§
Provision coverage ratio including floating provision P e 63.62%

AP f(.l,y@

N
=1 bl
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Utkarsh Smail Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.4.2 Sector Wise Advances and Gress NPAs:

{2 in crore)

As at 31 March 2023

Percentage of Gross NPAs

. No. H ) N
Sk No Sector Ou{sfd“\il:i_: otat Gross NPAs| to Total Advances in that
seckor #
A Priority Sector*
1 Agricuiture and allied activitics 6,054.82 257.57 2.46%
2 Advances to indusiries sector eligible as pdenty secior lending 486.57 1,95 0.02%
Vehicle, Vehicle parts and Transport Equipment 13152 0.36 0.00%
(ther Industries 337.09 1.60 0.02%
3 Services 1,195.64 3.57 0.03%
Trade 274.414 0.61 0.01%
Other services 364.24 2,97 0.63%
4 Personal loans 2,732.09 128.60 1.26%
Housing 20452 10.03 0.13%
Others 2,527.58 118.56 1.13%
Sub.total {A) 14,469.12 391.69 3.74%
B Noa Priority Sector
H Agriculture and allicd activities 132411 - 0.00%
2 Industry - - 0.00%
3 Services - - 0.00%
4 Personal loans 1.560.88 15.51 1.38%
Housing 350,11 17.00 0.39%
Louns against Properties 391.87 4.59 0.56%
Advances azainst Fixed Deposits 200.79 - 0.00%
Others 491.23 17.83% 0.62%
Sub-total (B) 1.887.99 39.81 1.38%
Total (A+B) 13.357.11 431.50 3.23%
8L No.  iSeclor As af 31 March 2022
o ] Percentage of Gross NPAs
Ou‘fi“d"‘f::f:“m Gross NPAs| to Total Advances in that
sector &
A Priority Scctor*®
1 Agriculture and atlied activities 43544 4.23%
2 Advanees w industries sector eligible as priority sector kending 38.10 {1.43%
Texules 15.38 017
Vehicle, Viehicle parts and Transport Equipment 4.10 0.03%
Food Procesting 99.19 3,60 0.11%
3 Services 2.062.50 127.76 §45%
Trade 137805 62.24 (0.71%
Other services 13362 56.35 0644
4 Personal loans 3106.02 16,43 0. 19%
Housing 173,44 7.13 0.05%
Vehicle 126774 - 0.00%%
Sub-total (A} §,828.22 617.73 7.30%,
B Non Priority Sector
L Agriculture and altied aetivities 7.42 - 0.00%%,
2 [ndustry 142.5% 1.10 (1.06%
Vehicle, Vehicle parts and Transport Equipment 113.04 1.08 0.06%
3 Services 1.450.23 18.79 1.08%%
Non-bankiny {inancial companies 837,63 - 0.00%
4 Persopal luans 20130 10.54 0.38%
Housing 193.53 10.12 053467
Sub-totai (B) 1.802.50 30.43 E.68%
Total (A+B} (,630.72 648.16 6. 1%

For loans disbursed prior to { July

under Priority Sector Lending.

The Bank has

classiffied loan under Priority Sector Lending

(PSL} across

various

FIDD.CO Plan.BC.5/04.09.01/2620-21 dated 04 September 2020 with effect from 01 July 2020

* This includes underlying advances of P!

Lending Certificates purchased during the year. Refer Schedule 18.14.4 -

# expressed as a percentage of outstanding totai advances. 7

The Bank Has apiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure,

wch on by the auditors. CHARTE!
AY Z e, ey

e

categorics

based on Master

2020, the existing circular before the below mentiened revised circular was considered for classification of loan

Directions

riority Sector Lending Certificates sold and does not inciude underlying advances of Priority Sector




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.4.3 Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue {Z in crore)
Particulars As at As at
] ‘ 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Total Assets - -

Total NPAs - -

Total Revenue i

18.4.4 Particulars of Restructured Accounts:

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Bank has not implemented Resolution Plan for
any of the borrowers in accordance with the RBL Circular dated June 7, 2019 on Prudential Revised
Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets (“Framework™).

18.4.5 Divergence in asset classification and provisioning:

RBI vide circular no. DOR.ACC.REC.No.74/21.04.018/2022-23 dated L1 October 2022, has directed that
banks shall make suitable disclosures, wherever (a) the additional provisioning requirement assessed by RBI
exceeds 5 percent of the reported profit before provisions and contingencies for the reference period. or (b)
the additional Gross NPA identified by RBI exceeds 5 percent of the published incremental Gross NPA for the
reference period, or both. Based on the annual inspection conducted for the vear ended 31 March 2023 with
respect to the Bank's position as at 31 March 28&rdeeg are no reportable matters under (a) and (b) of the




Utkarsh Smal! Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.4.6 Transfer of loans exposures
(a) Details on loans not in default
(i) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Bank has not acquired loans not i default.
(ii) Loans acquired during the year ended 31 March 2022 under the RBI Master Direction on
Transfer of Loan Exposure dated 24th September, 2021 are given below:
(% in crores except number of months)

Particulars Retail Segment

Mode of acquisition Assignment (MSME)**
Wheels MSME

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired as at

31 March 2022 78.08 1467

Weighted average residual maturity (Number of months) 44.09 104.47

Weighted average holding period (Number of months)* 12.67 10.26

Retention of beneficial economic interest by the 10% 0%

originator

Weighted Average | Weighted Average
LTV 90% LTV 61%

Rating-wise distribution of loans acquired by value NA NA

* Weighted average holding period is contract origination date to pool cut off date

*% As per SFB operational guidelines to meet the requirement of shortfall in meeting the sub-targets

with in 40% PSL target

Coverage of tangible security (Weighted average LTV)

(iii) There is no transfer of loan not in default during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022

(b) Details of stressed loans transferred / acquired during the year

There is no transfer or acquisition of stressed toans (NPA / SMA) during the year ended 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022,

18.4.7 Security Receipts (SR)
There is no investments held as security receipts received by sale of NPA fo Securitization /
Reconstruction Company as at 31 March 2023 and 3t March 2022,

18.4.8 Details of provisioning pertaining to fraud accounts
{Zin crore)

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2023 March 2022
Number of frauds repoited 80 *87
Amount involved in frauds 1.85 32.58
Amounf of provision made for such frauds Lae__f.{:q\,t{ 123 1143
recoveries) ///\-’,1[~‘--‘-“’/lr: N




Amount of Unamortised provision debited from ‘other
reserves’ as at the end of the year

a) The Bank has recovered the amount of 20.28 crore (31 March 2022 - 1.15 crore) against amount
involved in frauds/robbery cases from accused staff as well as from insurance partner.

- 10.52

b} There are two cases in which mvelved amount is 0.34 crore {considered in involved amount)
but have no loss to the Bank accordingly no provision is made against this amount.

¢) * Total 115 cases have been considered as | fraud for reporting purpose in line with FMR

During the year ended 31 March 2023, as per forensic audit report additional 19 cases have been
added and I3 cases removed from the initial 115 cases identified. Now the total fraud amount
against 12] Surat cases is T30.73 crores against which the Bank has provided in full. As on 31
March 2023, out of the total 121 cases, 47 cases having exposure of Rs.10.91 crore are classified as
standard.

d) During the earlier year ended 31 March 2022, in accordance with the relevant RBI Circular dated
April 18, 2016, the Bank had created provision of T10.32 crores by debiting Balance in Profit and
Loss Account under ‘Reserves and Surplus’. The said amount is reversed as per the requirement of
the aforementioned RB! circular from the Reserves and Surplus to the Profit and Loss Account in
the current year ended 31 March 2023.

i
.//?’g Vg




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2623

18.4.9 Disclosure under Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress:
{¥ in crore except number of accounts)

{A) Exposure
to accounts Ex i
classified  as Aposutre assifi ‘:{)
Standard Ot (A), A
consequeat tojaggregate Of(A) Of (A as angar
. : . . consequent ]
implementatio {debt that{amount  written|amount paid by the] .
Type of borrower . . . . . implementation ofj
a of resolutionislipped intojoff during thejborrowers during the .
. . i resolution plan -
plan— PositionfNPA  during[half year half year .
Position as at the
as at the end[the half vear
end of 31 March
of 30
2023
September
2022
Personal Loans 20.93 2.09 - 4.73 i4.1:
Corporate persons™ - - - - -
Of which, MSMEs - - - - -
Others 34.07 3.70 0.00 14.23 16.1-
Total 55.00 5.79 0.00 18.96 30.23

*As defined w1 Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankrupicy Code, 2016
Amount paid by the borrower during the half year is net of additions in the borrower amount due to fresh disbursements mada.

RBI vide a circular dated Japuary 1, 2019 permitted a one-time restructuring of existing foans to Micro Small and Medium Enterpris.s
(MSME) without a downgrade in the asset classification. and this facility was extended vide circular dated February 11, 2028, circular dated
August 6, 2020 and circular dated May 3. 2021 subject to centain conditions. Details of such loans to MSME that are restructured under tize
extant guidelines and classified as standard are as below:

{Z in crore except number of accounts)

. Amount Amount
No. of ) .
Half vear / v ded sccounts Qutstanding—| Outstanding -
all year [ year ende ateoun Restructured | Other facitities of
restructured e
lacility the customer
31-Mar-23 2 G.11 0.00
30-Sep-22 3 0.20 0.01
31-Mar-22 o




Utkarsh Small Firance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20623

18.5 Exposure
18.5.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(Z in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 Muarch 2022

1)

Direct exposure

{a)

Residential Mortgages -

2.145.73

1.093.99

of which housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority
sector advance

207 47

178.91

{b)

Commercizl Real Estate

5644

16.71

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securitics (MBS) and
other securitized expo

Residentiai Mortgages

Commercial Real Estate

Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs)

106.57

90.31

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

2,308.74

1.201.01

Out of the total loans given against the mortgage of any real estate, only those loans have been classified as an
exposure to commercial reat estate, the prospects for repayment ia respect of which depend primarily on the cash
flows generated by such mortgaged asset.

18.5.2 Exposure to Capital Market:

(Z in crore)

Particulars

As at
1 March 2023

wd

As at
31 March 2022

(i)

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds.
convertible debentures and units of equity oricnted
mutual funds the corpus of which is nor exclusively
mvested in comporate debt;

(i1)

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investunent
in shares (including 1P0s / ESOPs), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity oriented

mutual funds;

(1)

Advances for any other purposes where shares or
convertible bonds or convertibie debentures or units of}
equity oriented mutsal funds are taken as primary
sgeurity;

(iv)

Advanees for any other purposes to the extent secured by
the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds i.e. where the primary sccurity other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units off
equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the
advances;

¥

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers.and market

makers;

T
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Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of]
shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on

{vi) clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources, - -
(vii) ?.ridge loans to companies against expected equity tlows
issues; - -

Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in
respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds; - -
(ix} Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; - -
() All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered

and unregistered) - -
Total Exposure to Capital Market - -

(viit)

18.3.3 Risk Category wise Country Exposure:
The Bank's exposures are concentrated in India, hence country risk exposure as at 31 March 2023 is INil (31 March
2022: INIL).

18.5.4 Unsecured Advances (T in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2623 31 March 2022

1} Total unsecured advances of the bank 8,735.07 7,8978.63
Out of the above, amount of advances for which

i) intangible securities such as charge over the rights, - -
licenses, authority, etc. have been taken

1t} Estimated value of such intangible securities - .

18.3.5 Advances secured by book debis

Advances securad by tangible assers includes advances against book debts of TU,178.91 crores (31 March 202
8RB 45 crores)

18.5.6 Factoring exposures

The Banrk does not have factoring exposure as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

18.5.7 Intra-Group exposures (¥ in crore}
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2622
1) Tatal amount of intra-group exposures - -
it} Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures - -
Percentage of intra-group exposures to tolal exposure of]
ti) the bank on borrowers/customers i i
Details of breach of limits on intra-group exposures and
v} regulatory action thereon, if any. ) i

18.5.8 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure (UFCE) of Bank's Customer

The Bank has three borrowers having Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure of T34,19 crores as at 31 Mareh 2023 (31
March 2022 - Nil). The Bank made 0.03 crores provision in respect of one of the borrowers during the year ended 31
March 2023. The Bank held no incremental capital on advance o borrowers with Unhedged Foreign Currency
Exposure (31 March 2022: Nil}.

18.5.9 Betails of Single / Group Borrower limit
The Bank has complied with the limits prescribe
and group of the borrowser during the year ended 3

h
A A SR
i

'\"'dciincs with regards to exposure to single borrower
31 March 2022.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2623

18.6 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

18.6.1 Concentration of Deposits (% 1n crore)
Particulars As at As af
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 2,884 .07 2,895.27
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total
deposits of the Bink o ’ 21.04% 28.74%
18.6.2 Concentration of Advances {Z in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers* 654.89 578.32
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total 1.90% 5 44%
advances
* excluding advances against Bank’s own term deposits
18.6.3 Concentration of Exposures {Z in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 756.46 760.39
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers /
customers to Total Exposure of the Bank on borrowers / 5.54% 6,960

customers

Credit Exposure excludes the exposures which are 100% cash backed
Exposures comprise of credit exposure (funded and non-funded credit limits) and investment exposure excluding

other exposure of security placed with CCIL on account of limit for TREPS transaction of ¥ [,187.04 crores

{Previous year: TNl

18.6.4 Concentration of NPA’s (% in crore)
Particulars As at Agat
rhiewtar 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total Exposurc to the top twenaty NPA accounts 9.78 6.81
Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest N 5 970 [ 05%

to total Gross NP As.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.7 Derivatives :
18.7.1 Forward Rate Agreement/ Interest Rate Swap/ Cross curreancy swap :

{Z in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 Maypch 2022

i} The notional principal of swap agreements *

i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed te fulfil their
obligations under the agreements

iii) Coltateral required by the Bank upon entering into swaps

iv) Concentration of credit tisk arising from the swaps

v) The fair value of the swap book

* Pertains to cross curmency swap

18.7.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

{1 crore)

Si. No. Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

1|Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
and currency derivatives undertaken during the year

2Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
and currency derivatives outstanding as on year ended

Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
and currency derivatives outstanding and not “highty etfective™ as on
year ended

a2

41Mark-to-Market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives and
currency derivatives owtstanding and not “highly effective” as on year
ended

18.7.3 Risk Exposure in Derivatives:

The Bank has not engaged in any derivatives contracts during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
However, Bank acquired a CCS contract pursuant to Busingss Transfer Agreement from Holding Company m the vear

ended 31 March 2017. The disclosure to the extent applicz en below.

4
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Quantitative disclosure on risk exposure in derivatives

{Z in crore)

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Currency derivatives

Inferest rate

S. Ne. {Particular Forward Currency P . derivativ
Contract Option Currency Swap erivatives
. Derivatives (Notionat Principal
(® Amount)
a) Far hedging - - - -
b) For trading “ - -
(1) Marked to Market Positions
a) Asset (+} - - . -
b) Liability (-) - - - -
(1ii} Credit Exposure - - - .
(iv) Likely impact of one percentage
change in interest rate {100*PV01)
a} on hedging derivatives - - - -
b) on trading derivatives - - R -
) Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01
observed during the year
. Nil . - - -
a) on hedging o~ - - - -
b} on trading N.d - - . -
Nil - - “ -
(Z in crore)
For the vear ended 31 March 2022
Currency derivatives _
S. Neo. |Particular Forward Currency Intef‘est.rate
. Currency Swap derivatives
Centract Cption .
o Derivatives (Notional Principal
Amount}
a) For hedging - - . i
b} For trading - - - -
(i) |Marked to Market Positions
a} Asset () . - - .
b) Liability (-) R _ N N
(itiy |Credit Exposure i - i v
. Likely impact of one percentage
(v} change in interest rate (100*PVO1)
a) on hedging dertvatives - - . R
b) on trading derivatives - - w .
Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01
W) observed during the year
. Nil - - - -
a) on hedging i N - N -
. Nil - - - -
b} on trading S - . - -

* Pertains to CIoss currency swap

18.7.4 Credit Default Swap

The Bank has not entered into Credit Default Swap duri




Utkarsh Smalf Finance Baok Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

18.8. Disclosures relating to Securitization (% in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1. No of SPEs holding assets for securitisation transactions
originated by the originator

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPEs - -

3. Total armount of exposures retained by the originator to
comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet

a) Oft-balance sheet exposures - p
* First loss - -
* Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures - R

* First loss . -
* Others - h
4. Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than
MRR

a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -

i) Exposure to own securitizations - -

* First loss - -
* Others - .
11} Exposure to third party securitizations - -

* First loss - -
* Others - -
b} On-balance sheet exposures . -

i) Exposure to own sccuritizations - -

* First loss - -
* Others - -
ii} Exposure 10 third party securitizations - -

* First loss - R
* Others - -
5. Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and
gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation

6. Form and quantum {outstanding vaiue) of services provided
by way of credit ephancement, liquidity suppori, post- - -
securitisation asse! servicing, etc.

7. Performance of facility provided. Please provide separatcly
for cach facility viz. Credic ephascement, liquidity support,
servicing agent erc. Mention percent in bracket as of total value
of facility provided. - -
(2) Amount paid

(b) Repayment received

{(c) Qutstanding amount

8. Average default rate of portfolios observed in tie past. Please
provide breakup separatcly for each asset class ie. RMBS, - -
Vehicle Loans etc.




9. Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same
underlying asset. Please provide breakup separately for each
asset

class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans, etc.

10. Investor complaints
(a) Directly/Indirectly received and; . -
{b) Complaints outstanding

18.9 Ofi- Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
There are no off balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Bank, which needs to be consolidated as pet accounting
nonms.

1
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

arsh Small Finance Bank Limited

18.10 Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEA Fund)

18.1

(% in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund

Add: Amounts transferred to DEA Fund during the nine months

Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEA Fund towards clatros

Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund

1 Disclosure of complaints:

18.11.1 Summary information on complaints received by the bank from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Sr. No

Complaints received by the bank from its customers

As at
31 March 2023

Ag at
31 March 2022

Complaints received by the bank from its customers

MNumber of complaints pending at beginning of the vear

142

233

Number of complaints received during the year *

20,799

18,469

Number of complaints disposed during the year *

20,703

18,565

3.1 |Of which, number of complaints rejected by the bank

134

7

Number of complaints pending at the end of the year

238

142

Maintainable complaints received by the bunk from Office of Ombudsman

Ombudsman

Number of maintainable complaints received by the bank trom Office of

P14%%

fs

Ombudsman

5.1 |Of 3, number of complaints resolved in favour of the bank by Office of

N
3

f=
i

5.2 O 3, number of complaints resolved through
conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman

L
L

wh
wd

Ombudsman sgainst the bank

Of 3, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of

6

those appealed)

Nuiber of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time {other than

Note: Maintainable complaints refer 10 complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2621

(Previously Banking Ombudsman Scheme,2006) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.

* The above information does not include complaints redressed within 1 working day and is as certified by the Management and relizd
upon by the auditors

** Out of 114 BO complaints, 01 complaint from West
given by RBI from North 2 zone.

Lo\ WigensT /e

105215W/ | &

in open status at financial year end and 01 complaints decision is nat
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.12 Penalties imposed by the Reserve Bank of India

No penalty was imposed by RBI on the Bank during the year ended 31 March 2023,

For the year ended 31 March 2022, Enforcement Department, RBI Central Office, vide #ts letter dated Juiy 6, 2021 and Order of date issued by the
Adjudicating Committee of Executive Directors of RBI, advised of having imposed a monetary penalty of € crore on the Bank by RBL in exercise
of the powers conferred under Section 47A read with Section 46(4) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, The penalty has been levied in the matter
of contravention of RBI directions by the Bank observed with respect to the advances sanctioned to a NBFC and its Group companies i February
2018. The Bank paid the penalty amount of 1 crore to RBlon July 17, 2021,

18.13 Disclosure on Remuneration

(ualitative Disclosure
A. Information relating to the bodies that oversee remuneration

a) Name, compaosition and mandate of the main body overseeing remuncration

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board is the main body oversecing remuneration. As on 31 Mar 2023, The NRC
comprises of two Independent Directors viz Mr. Kajal Ghose and Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta, onc non-independent Director viz Mr. Muralidharan
Rajarnani.

Role and functions of the Committee related to Nomination
A. Appoeintment criteria and gualifications

i) To identify and approve appointment of persons who are qualified to become directors in the bank and who may be appointed as KMPs or SMPs
in the bank. who possess integrity, independence, adequate knowledge, skill, qualification, experience in the field af his'her speciulisation
commensurate with the proposed rolz and responsibility as Director, KMP or SMP and shall have the abitity 10 manage the responsibility assigned
to him/sher.

ii) To ensure that the Bank appoints or cominues the employment of any person as Managing Director / Whole-time Director subject to the
conditions iaid down under Part I of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and in line with extant RBT guidelines and relevant provisions of the
Banking Regulation Act 1949,

iii) To ensure that the Bank shall appoint or continue the service of any person as Independent Director subject to the provisions of Section 149
read with Schedule 1V and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Banking Regulation Act 1949.

iv) Appointment for any Senior Management Persannel (Executives one levet below the MDY & CEQ) shall be approved by the Conuntitee., subjecs
{o the candidare having been interviewed by at least two (2} members of the Comunintez. Basis the recommendation of the panel members, the
Committee may zpprove the appointment. Appointment of any exzcutive whose fixed salary exceeds 20.70 crores p.a. will need to be approved by
the NRC,

B. Following are the functions of Nomination and Remuneration Conumittee:

I. Review the structure, size, composition, diversity of the Board and make necessary recommendations fo the Board with regard to any changes a5
necessary and formulation of policy thereon.

2. Evaluate the skills that exist, and those that are absent but azeded ar the Board fevel, and search for appropriate candidates who have the profile
to provide such skill sets.

3. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary repost to the Board

4. Advise critesia for evaluation of Independent Direcrors and the Board & its Committces and cay out evaluation of every directors’
performance. .

5. To formulate the criteria for determining gualilications, positive attributes and independunce of a dircctor.

6. o recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Sentor Management Personnel and
other employecs.

7. Ta formulate eriteria for payment to Kev Managerial Personnet and Senior Management Personael performance hased incentives 7 rewards based
on Bank's pertormance.

8. Examine vacancies that will come up at the Board on account of retirement or otherwise and suggest course ol action.

9. Undertake a process of due diligence to determine the suitability of any person for appointrent { continuing to hold appointment as a director on
the Board, based upon gqualification, expertise, track record, imeg_r,\;i«f"? 1 ;

applicable) and formulate the criterta relating thereto. -

s
7
! i @
: k;;mrsﬁeu o
s




10. Review the compositicn of Committees of the Board, and identify and recommend te the Board the Directors who can best serve as members of
each Board Comrnittee.

1. Review and rccommend to the Board for approval the appointment of Managing Drector & CEQ and other whole-time Ditectors and the
overall remuneration framework and associated policy of the Bank (including remuneration policy for directors and key managerial personnal) the
fevel and structure of fixed pay, variable pay, perquisites, bonus pool. stock-based compensation and any other form of compensation as ray be
included from time to time to all the employees of the Bank including the Managing Director & CEQ, other Whole-time Directors and senior
munagers one level below the Board.

12. Review and recommend to the Board for approval the total increase in manpower cost budget of the Bank as a whole, at an aggregate level, for
the next year.

13. Recommend to the Board the compensation payable to the Non-Executive Chairman of the Bauk.

14. Review the Code of Conduct and HR strategy, policy and performance appraisal process within the Bank, as well as any material changes in
the organization structure which could have wide ranging implications.

t5. Review and recommend o the Board for approval of various other HR related policies inciuding the Talent Management Policy and
Succession Policy in the Bank for ensuring business continuity, especially at the level of Board, MD & CEQ, other Whole Time Dircctars, Senior
Management Personne! (one level below the MD & CEO and other key rotes).

16. Review and recommend to the Board for approval:

1. the creation of new pesitions one leve! below MD & CEQ, wherever required

2. appointments, promotions and exits of senior managers one level below the MD & CEOQ

b) External consuitants whose advice has been sought, the body by which they were commissioned, and in what areas of the
requneration process

No external consultant has been engaged in the current year.

¢) Scope of the Bank’s remuneration policy {e.g. by regious, business lines), Including the extent to which it is applicable to foreign
subsidiaries and branches

The Human Resources Policy of the Bank, appraved by the Board of the Bank on 09 January 2017 and the same has been reviewed by the Board
of Directors in its mecting in 22 March 2022 pursuant to the guidelines issucd by RBL to cover all employees of the Bank. Fusther the Board had
recommended RBI the revised renuneration of MD & CEQ which has been approved by Reserve Bank of India vide its latter dated on 14-Dee-22.
The Bank alse has in place a Pelicy on Risk Alignment of Compensation applicable for MDY & CEGQ and Risk Control and Compliance. The policy
is applicabte to MD & CEQ, WTD and employess in Risk and Compliance depasiment.

d) Type of emplovees covercd and number of such emplovees

All the amnployees of the Bank are coverad. The total number of =mployees of the Bank as at 31 March 2023 swere 15424 134 March 20220
12,617)

B. Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration processes.

Key features and objectives of remuneration policy: The Bank has, under the wuidance of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitice
("NRC”} and the Board. followed remuneration practices intended o drive meritocracy and perfermance based on a prudent risk management

framework.

Effective governance of compensation: The NRC has oversight aver compensation to senior management personnel and alse provides overall
guidarce 1o the compensaiion paid to other employecs.

Alignment of compensation philosophy with prudent risk taking: While the Bank sceks to achieve a mix of fixed and varisble remuneration
that is prudent, it currently has predominantly a fixed remunesation structure with no guaranieed bonuses. Fusther, the remuneration of employees
in financial and risk control functions is aot linked to business outcomes and selely depends o their performance. The Bank seeks to align
remuneration with financiat and non-financial performance indicators.

Whether the remuneration committee reviewed the Bank’s remuneration policy during the past year, and if se, an overview of any
changes that were made: There has been no change in the Bank’s remuneration policy during the past year.

Discussion of how the Baak ensures that risk and compliance employees are remunerated independently of the businesses they oversee:
The remuneration of employees in control functions such as Risk and Compliance depends solely on their individual and overall functional
sam i glso reflected in their KRA's. The Bank also has in place a Policy on Risk

o

performance and 1s not linked to any business outcomes. Th
Alignment of Compensation applicable for MD & CEQ and




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

C. Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account in the remuneration processes.

Overview of the key risks that the Bank takes into account when implementing remuneration measures: The Board
approves the overall risk management policy including sk framework, fimits, etc. The Bank conducts all its business activities
within this framework. The NRC while assessing the performance of the Bank and senior management, shall consider adherence
to the policies and accordingly make its recommendations to the Board.

Overview of the nature and type of key measures used to take account of these risks, includiag risk difficult to measare:
The evaluation process shall incorporate both qualitative and quantitative aspects including asset quality, provisioning, increase iz
stable funding sources, refinement/improvement of the risk management framework, effective management of stakeholder
relationships and mentoring key members of the top and senior management.

Discussion of the ways in which these measures affect remuneration: In order to ensure alignment of remuneration wita
prudent practices, the NRC takes into account adherence to the risk framework in addition to business performance.

Discussion of how the nature and type of these measures have changed ever the past year and reasons for the changes, as
well as the impact of changes on remuneration: There has been no change in the nature and type of measures over the past year

D. Description of the ways in which the Bank seeks to fink performance during a performance measurement year
with levels of remuneratioa.

Overview of main performance metrics for the Bank, top level business lines and individuals: The main performance metrics
inciude profitability, business growth, asset quality, compliance, and customer service.

Discussian of how amounts of individual remuneration are linked to the Bank-wide and individual performance: The
assessment of emplovees shall be based on their performance with respect to their resuft areas and shall include the metnics
mentioned above.

Discussion of the measures the Bank will in general implement to adjust remuneration in the event that performance
metrics are weak, including the Bank’s criteria for determining ‘weak’ performance metrics: fn case such an event should
oceur, the Board/WRC shall review and provide overall guidance on the corrective measures to be taken,

E. Description of the ways in which the Bank secks to link performance during a performance measurement year with
levels of remuneration.

As a part of the performance management process in the bank at the beginning of each financial year , the bank rolls ou:
individual KRA’s to each and every employee in the bank. These KRA’s are broken down based on the strategic objectives and
business budgets set by the Board of the bank. Apart from regular feedback which each manager provides to his / her subordinates
a bank as formal process of Mid-Year Review and Year End Review to assess performance of zach role holder in the bank. Bascd
on the performance review at an organizational / Fungy gij’:LQ\dividuai the bank decided on percentage of salary increments o be
given at various levels of performance. w2l

A R




Discussion of the Bank’s policy on deferral and vesting of variable remuneration and, if the fraction of variable
remuneration that is deferred differs across employees or groups of employees, a description ef the factors that determine
the fraction and their relative importance:

The various deferral arrangement of variable remuneration in the bank broadly are as follows -

a) For MD & CEQ - The variable remuneration of the MD and CEO is approved by the Reserve Bank of India which includes
deferral arrangement for the cash and non cash part of the variable pay which is implemented by the bank as per the advice of the
RBI.

b) All ESOP ‘s which are granted across all levels in the organization have deferral arrangement in them
¢} Monthly / Quarterly Variable Pay - Based on the nature of the scheme , deferral arrangements are made in the same which
differ from channel to channel.

‘The fraction of deferral to be considered is dependent upon —

a) Guidelines issued by the Regulator from time to time

b) Approval as per the overall performance framework approved by the NRC and the Board
¢) Driving right behaviours via the various incentive schemes.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules lorming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 Murch 2023

Discugsion of the Bank’s policy and criteriz for adjusting deferred remuncration before vesting and (if pernsitted by national faw) after vesting through claw hack
atrangements:

The Baak also has in place a Pulicy on Risk Alignment of Compensation applicabfe for MD & CEO and Risk Conmrol and Compliance. This policy deals with the defarred payment of

variable pay and claw back gu

elines.

F. Descriprion of ke differeat forms of variable remuneration 1hat the Renk utilizes and the ratianale for using these different forms.

The Bank has vaniable pay that is paid based on the performance that is apphicable 1o all levels, The ESOP options of the Holding Company and the Bank are currently giver o cligible
empleyees in Chicl Manager and above grade subject to perfurmance. Employecs in sales function do have incentives based on monthly business perfemance.

Overview of the forms of variable reeaurecation offered. A discussion of the vse of differeac forras of vaciable remuneration and if the mix of different formy of variable
remunerstion differs across employees of group of emplnyees, a descriptiun of the Lactors that daterming the mix and their reladve importance

The variable cemuneration 8 offered in the form of annual performance bunus. The same is detennined on the basis of comprehensive performance appexisal sysiem whersin the

performance of cach employee is evaluated on the basis of defined Goal Sheet and KRA at the i

Quantitative [Hsclosure-

mg ol year and

As ar 31 March 2023 and 31 March 3022 the quaniitative disclosurz covers MD & CEO and Material Risk ukers.

weal against thers

(T in crone. excenl aumbers)

. - As zt As at
Se. No. Particulers 3T Maech 2023 31 March 2032
1) Number of mectings held by the Neminadon and P B
Remuneration Commitice sfuring the financial year.
Wi Rcmuchlinn paid w s members during S fnancial 069 o04
year {sittiny feas)
iy Number  of employees having received 2 vadiablel " 7
= remuncration award during the financial vear.
iy Number and total amount of sign-on swasds made during R R
the Haancial yeur,
iy Details of Joining bonua, £ any, paid a2 joinmg { sign un } ;
' honus
i) Detaits of seveiance pay, in addition to accrued benefits, i : }
Ay,
The sl remuneration 9y 2253 Crore o MD & TEOFor MD 8 CEQ, 1127 crorss {comprising vash .03
apprned for FY2020-21 bas remain wnehanged  asjcrotes and nen-cash T84 grores b apprived a5 vanable
advised vide famer o R dats 12 Jaman'24122 and 281 for the performsancs perfod FY 2020-21 our of which
Fubv' 2021, however, the fixed and variable pay of M &{oash 263 crores 15 adpisted with th sy Hned pav ot
LEO hove boen bitt . tise M1 & CLEL fo H P OB E i the
{11 Figed Pay inctuding peryuisite for FYZ023-2021 isfavailablz cash benus upiront, The Jeiemad non cosh
approved 131 Crore pua. remunertinn in the form of ESOPs are as belaw-
12) W62 Crore [eompe cash 1331 Crove and noa-a FY 22-23 033 cranes
cash 1031 Crored w0 be psid as Variable pay for shejin FY 23-24- 0,17 crores
perivnmance peried of FYZ020-2001. In FY 24-23 - (.07 croges
-t af cash component of T3] srres, 21 wrare S ESOP: offered to matenial nsk rakers hav
pad i the month of Sep2. rast amuunt of 1014 crorgjclauses a3 por exasmng USFBL - B3O scheme and the
seould be opaid i deferred manner in noxt applicablejdeferred cost of ESOPs are i beiow-
TS, {a FY 22-23 - .61 crores
- Nonecash component ol 3031 crorzs detemed in thepln Y 23-24 - 0.36 crorey
form af ESOMs ars s below- InFY 2415 -0.2 crores
mFY 22-23- W2 crares n FY 25-26 - 0464 crares
I FY 23-24 - 3.10 crares
Further, RB1 vide 115 letter dated Devember 13, 2522
Total 1moum of swstaading deferted remuneration, sphit '{ppfmcd "h: %t:m( nf‘ i Eiu.(;rnrc af vasahfo pay ta MD
. . . & CE4) for FYZ1-22 in the twlowing manaen
300 iftld caih, shares and share-finked instruments asd other L Cirant of $1.00 Crore tzash 2640 srare and nonecash
furs. RA0 crore) as variable pay for the petformance vear
FYM21-22.
i, The wariabie pay is W be defered 10 ponecash
campraznt of varable pay over aext 3 years in equal
instaiments of 339  each. Further, 30% of cash)
cumponent 1o be paid opfonl and remaining 507 to be
defurrad In next 3 years in equal insalments, Accordingly,
Quz of cash component of 10 40 crores. UL crore s
paid in the month of DecZ2. rest amouat of 2020 crore
would be paid 1 deforred maoner in oex: 3 applicablc]
YCars.
ln FY 2022.23, ESOPs offered wr mazrial risk takers;
have defermal clauses as per existing USFBL - £30P
scherne and tha defermed cost of ESOPs are a5 below-
In FY 37-23 - 20.84 croves
in FY 23-23 - 0.8 erores
In FY 24-15 - L34 crores
In FY 25-26 - 10.84 vrores - -
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. Total amouns of defered cemuneration paid out in the

3G wear. - -
Breakdown of amounr of tereuneration awards for the year|
. - -

4 Fixed Fixed 683 Fixed ; .88
Variable Varable: 092 Yarahle: 8.6
Deferred Daferrad: 010 Beferred: Nif
Non-deferred Nondelerred: 7.73 Non-daterred; 7.35]
Totzl amount of oulstanding deferred rermuncrabion and)

5(1) retained remtnerstion exposed to ex post explicit and /7 v - .
implicit adjustments.

sy Totzl amount of reductions during the year due to ex- post ;
explicit adjustiments

s(iid) Totsl amount of seductions during the vesr due to ex- post A .
implicit adjustments

[} Number of MR Ty idemified** 6 MRT=& L WID TMRIs & 1 WTD

Hix Wumber of cases where malus bas been exercised. - -

i Number of cases whate clawback has been exercised, - -

i Number u!" cases where both malus and clawback have B _

) heen exercised.

The mean pay for the bank as 3 whole {excluding sub-

) stafl) and the doviativn of the pay of cach of its WTDy B4 Crores & 56 wmes .03 croses & 31 dimes
from the mean pay.

*Remuneration excludes the cost d under Empl Stock Option Plan of the Holding Company and Grotiry & Leave encashiment telated costs which is accounted az entiry

level based on actuarial valustion,

*= Az per RBI Circular No.73/29.67.001/2019-20 dut 04 November 201 ¢ eifective from FY 20-21.

The bonus paid during the year pertains to previous flnancial years.

Variable pay amounting fo $4.62 crores has been approved by RBI for MD & CEQ far FY 2020-21. Cash component of 22.21 erores of the same has been paid 10 MD & CEO during
current year, rest 20,10 crare would be paid next year. Non-cask componens of I0.31 crores is defirred in the foitts of USFBL - ESOs as per RB1 approval.

Variable pay amounting to $1.00 eroce has been approved by RET for MD & CEO for FY 2021-22. Cask component of 10.22 crores of the same hus been pard o MD & CEQ in the
manth of Dec22, rest 3026 crore would be paid next 1 years in deferred manner, Non-cash ¢ (2060 croces is defetred in the form of USFBL - ESOPs as per RBI approval,

4 :
=1 105215W/ } 5]
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.14.1 Business Ratios: {in crores except percentages and raiio)
As at As at
Particular:
articwiars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(1) Interest income as a % to Working funds' 15.18% 14.43%
.. Non-Interest income as a % to Working
(ih) , ° # 1.80% 1.44%
funds
(iii) Cost of deposits’ 6.86% 7.01%
(iv) Net interest margin’ 9.74% 8.80%
(v) Operating profit’ as a % o Working funds' 5.07% 3.97%
(vi) Return on Assets’ (Working funds') 2.45% 0.48%
) ciness’ (Denosi . -
(vi) Business 5( eposit plus Net Advance) per 167 (35
employee
(viii} Profit per employee’ 0.03 0.0l
Notes

1. Working funds represents the monthly average of total assets as reported to Reserve Bank of India in
Form X under Section 27 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

. Operating profit is net profit/ (loss) for the year before provisions and contingencies.
. "Business” is the total of net advances and deposits (net of inter-bank deposits).
Return on Assets is net profit! (loss) after tax divided by working funds.

. Productivity ratios are based on average employee number. :

. Cost of deposit as % to average deposit '@/
. Net interest income as % to sum of average portfolio and average investments

P
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.14.2 Disclosure of Fees / Remuneration Received in respect of Bancassurance Business

(¥ in crore)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i} Fee / Remuneration from Life Insurance Business 21.51 14.88
i) Fee./ Remuneration from General insurance 0.93 0.07
Business

18.14.3 Disclosure of Fees / Remuneration Received in respect of Marketing and distribution
The Bank has received INil towards marcketing & distribution during the year ended 31 March 2023, (31 March

2022: 20.36 crores})

18.14.4 Detaiis of Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC)

Following are the details of PSLC sold by the Bank.

(Z in crore}

Particufars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

General category

Micro enterprises 1,500.00 -

Agriculture - -

Small/marginal farmers 7.235.00 9.255.00

Total 8,735.00 9.233.00

Following are the details of PSLC purchased by the Bank. (% in crore)
As at As at

Purticulars

31 March 2023

31 pMarch 2622

General caregory

Micro enterprises - 750.00
Agricuiture - -
Smail/marginal farmers - -
Total R - 750.06

o
a




18.14.5 Break up of Provisions and Contingencies debited to Profit & loss Account

(€ in crore)

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2622
i) Provisions for NPI - -
i) Provision towards NPA (112.89) 202.43
it} Provision made towards Income tax 125.74 52.94
iv} Other Provisions and Contingencies 420.96 195.09
a Technical wriie off 382.78 22198
b Provision for standard assets 14.33 10.57
c Provision on restructured assets (16.30} (29.27)
d  |Floating provision 82.87 2.4t
e Provisions made towards deferred Tax (Net) 5.57 {34.6%)
f  |Provision against fraud * 1.74 9.17
g  Contingency provision ** {32.00) 65.00
h Provision on COVID 19 - (50.13)
1 Provision on SMA due to COVID 19 - -
i Others 1.98 0.36
Total provisions 433.82 450.46

* Reduction because of movement to NPA of T 8.41 crore and reversal of {raud cases as per forensic audit of 2
2.41 crore

£+ The Bank was carrying an additional contingency provision of 63 crores as at 31 March 2022 which has been
utilised to the extent of 252 crores in the current year and consequently the provision as at 31 March 2023 is 313

Crores.

18.14.6 Implemeatation of [FRS converged Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The Bank submits its Proforma Ind-AS financials on half vearly basis to RBI based on the GAFP assessment
carried out by the Bank. The Bank is currently handling the impact analysis and reporting offline by using excel
based models. However, the Bank is in the process of implementing systems solutions (IndAS 109 and 116} and
hiring skilled resources to implement Ind-AS accounting.

18.14.7 Payment of DICGC Insurance Premiom (including GST)
(% in crore}

. . As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i) Pavment of DICGC Insurance Premium b1.52 8.2+
i} Arrears in payment of DICGC premium - -

18.14.8 Investor Education and Protection Fund
There are no amounts which are due 1o be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund dusing the

year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.




18.14.9 Details of item under Other expenditure head exceeds onc per cent of the total income

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i Banking software charges 50.47 44.77
18.14.10 Details of item under Miscellancous income head excecds one per cent of the total incomie
(T in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
; lncgme from sale of Priority sector lending 96.14 64.76
certificate
1i Recovery in written off account 58.46 29.66

18.14.11 Details of item of Others under Other Assets head exceeds one per cent of the total Asset
There are no item of Others under Other Assets head exceeds one per cent of the total asset during the year ended
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

18.14.12 Details of item of Others including provisions under Other Liabilities and Provisions head exceeds

one per cent of the total Asscts
There are no item of Others including provisions under Other Liabilities and Provisions head exceeds one per cent

of the total Assets during the vear ended 31 March 2023 a
gthey 3




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statemnents for the year ended 31 Mareh 2623

18.15 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
(% i crore, except per share data)

FParticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Basic
Weighted average nurnber of equity shares - Basic 895,624,973 878,110,556
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders (%) 404.50 61.46
Basic eamings per share 4.52 0.7¢
Diluted
Weighted average number of equity shares - Basic 895,624,973 878,110,336
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of 2,175,340 2.097.153
employee stock options
Weighted average number of equity shares - Diluted 897,300,314 880,207,709
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders () 404.30 61.46
Diluted earnings per share 4.51 0.70
Face value per share 10 10

18.16 Employee Stock Option Plan (“ESOP™)

A. Options granted by Holding Company

The Holding Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Scheme to be administered through a Trust, The scheme
provides that subject to continued employment with the Bank, the employees of Bank are granted an option to acquire equity shares
of the Holding Company that may be exercised within a specified year.

The Holding Company formed Utkarsh ESOP Welfare Trust to issue ESOPs to employees of the Bank as per Employee Stock
Option Scheme. Total 1,200.000 equity shares have been reserved under ESOP scheme 2016 and pursuant to Sharcholder
agreement executed in the year 2016-17 additional 5,989,594 equity shares has been reserved by the Holding Company for the
purpose of ESOP scheme.

During the vear ended 31 March 2023, the Holding Company granted Nil oplions to the Bank's employees (31 March 2022 1 Nil
options}.

The options vested can be exercised within a peried of 24 months from the date of vesting. The plan is administered, supervised and
implemented by the Compensation Committee under the policy and frame work izid down by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company in accordance with the authority delegated to the Compensation Committee in this regard from time to time.

These options are vested on graded basis as follows:

Vesting details General grant Special grant
On completion of | year 25% 10%
On completion of 2 vears 23% 20%
On completion of 3 years 25% 43%
On completion of 4 years 25% 25%

The Guidance Note on “Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments” issued by the ICAI establishes financial and reporting
principles for employees share based payment plans. The Guidance Note applies to employee share based payment plans, the graat
date in respect of which falls on or after 01 April 2005, The Guidance Note also applies to wansfers of shares or stock options of
the parent of the enterprise, or shares or stock options of another enterprise in the same group as the enterprise, o the employees of
the enterprise. The compensation costs of stock optio
method. )
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Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Stock uptien activity under ESOP Plan in respect of employees of the Bank is as below:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2622

Number of eguity shares:

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 3,538,360 4,910,739
Granted during the year - -

Granted during the year with grant effective date

pertaining to FY 2019-20 ) i

Lapsed/Cancel during the vear 611,782 633,617
Exercised during the year 87,544 717,462
Previous vear adjusiments - -1,300
Qutstanding at the end of year 2,859,034 3.538,360
Exercisable al the end of year 1,850,571 1,281,488

The compensation cost is cafculated based on the intrinsic value method, wherein the excess of fair value of underlying equity
shares as on the date of the grant over the exercise price of the options given to employees of the Bank under the ESOP scheme, 15
recognised as compensation cost and amortised over the vesting period. The Holding Company cross charges the compensation
cost to the Bank to the extent it pertains to the employees of the Bank.

Impact of Fair Value Method on Net Profit/(Loss) and EPS
Had the compensation cost for the Holding company's stock option plans owstanding been determined based on the [air value by
using Black Scholes model, the Bank’s aet profitloss and camings/loss per share would have been as per the proforrsa amounts

indicated below:

{Z in crore, except per share data)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

Profit/(lossalter tax

- As reporred 403430 G146
- Proforma A032.26 36.84
{LossVEamings per share
Basic
Weighted average number of shares 805,624 973 $73.116.330
EPS as reported (3} 432 0.70
4.49 (.63

Proforma EPS ()

The foliowing assumptions are used for calculation of fuir value of grants issued.

Particuiars For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 26823 31 darch 2022
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatihty 61% to47% 61% to 47%
Risk free interest rate 4.39 % t0 5.53% 439 % to 3.35%
2to 5

Expected life in years




B. Out of options graated by Bank
During the FY 2019.20, the Bank introduced Utkarsh Smali Finance Bank Limiled (USFBL) MDD & CEQ Employee Stock Option
Plan 2020 to offer, grant and issue in one or more tranches, the Stock Optzons to My Govind Singh, MD & CEO.

During the year the Bank has granted 18,082,976 option under the Utkarsh Smali Finance Bank Limited {USFBL} Employee
Stock Option Plan 2020, fo eniployees as under :-

For the year ended For the year ended

Date of Grant 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Number of|[Exercise Price Number of Options  [Exercise Price

Options
28 Decemnber 2020 * 74,377 14.01 74,377 14.0¢
01 August 2021 15,614,500 27.00 15,611,500 27.00
01 October 2021 15,000 30.00 13,000 30.00
18 October 2021 to 01 January 2022 80,000 31.80 80,000 3180
12 January 2022 ** 221,270 14.01 456,817 14.01
01 April 2022 to 16 July 2022 125.060 31.80 - -
01 August 2022 16,771,750 27.00 - -
17 September 2022 *** 626,226 31.80 - -
30 September 2022 200,000 31.80 - -
13 October 2022 120.000 27.00 - -
01 January 2023 to 31 March 2023 240,000 3180 - -

Shares vested to the employees have an exercise peried of two years.

*The Bank recsived approval from RBI on 31 August 2021 for remuneration of MD & CEQ for FY 2019-20 wherzin non cash
component of variable pay of £0.10 crore was approved and was paid by way of grant of 71,377 options out of banks shares with
effect from 28 December 2020 being the date of approval of Bunks ESOF Scheme.

*+*The Bank received approval for remuneration to MD & CE( for financial year 2020-21 from RBI on 12 January 2022 advising
to defer non-cash component ovar nexi 3 years in 3 gqual instalments of 33.33% each. Further, 0% of cash component to be pad
upfront and remaining 50% 1o be deferred in next 3 vears in equal instalments. Accordingly. the Bank has granted 4.56,817 ESQPs
to MD & CEO at 214.01 per shure w.e.f [2 January 2022 with vesting over next three years i equal proportion i.e. 33.33% each
year. However, Bank has received another letter from RBI on 23 July 2072 wherein non cash component has been revised. It is
also advised to adjust the excess grant of nos-cash camposnent in the next wanche itself. Accordingly, the Bank has revised the
options granted to MD & CEO w.e.f 12 January 2022 10 221,270 options with vesting over next two year with the proportion of
69% and 3 (%,

##+The bank received approval for remuneration to MD & CEO for financial year 2021-22 fom RBI on 14 December. 2022
including non cash varizble pay of ¥0.60 crore and advised to defer it aver next 3 years in 3 equal instaiments. Accordingly, Bunk
has granted 6,26,226 ESOPs 1o MD & CEO at ¥31.80 per shore w.e {17 September 2022 being the date of Board approval for
remuneration fo MDD & CEQ with vestiny over next three years in equal propertion i.¢. 33.33% cach year.

These options are vested on graded basis as follows:

Grant to MD & CEOQ

. . Grant to

Vesting details employecs Grant dated Other Grants
January 12, 2022
On completion of 1 year 5% 09.00% 33.33%
On completion of 2 years 25% 31.00% 33.33%
On completion of 3 years 25% - 33.33%
On complction of 4 years 25% - -
Stack option activity under ESOP Plan of the Bank is as below:
Particulars For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2623 31 March 2822

Number of equity shares:
Quistanding at the beginning of the year 14,322,600 -
Granted during the year i8,082,976 16,163,317
Granted during the year with grans effective date ) 71377

pertaining w FY 2019-20

[E) RN N
Lxy 1052180 |,

Vi 1Gensy
Iy




Lapsed/Cancel dusing the year 2,401,135 1,894,250
Exercised during the year 383,141 17,844
Previous year adjustments 235546

Outstanding at the end of year 29,385,764 14,322,600
Exercisable at the end of year 2,871,225 -

The compensation cost is calculated based on the fair value of the options under black scholes model and amortised over the grant

period.

The following assumptions are used for caleulation of fair value of grants issued.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2623 31 March 2022
Dividend yieid 0,00% 0.00%
Expected volatility 46.3% 10 49.3% 49.8% to 48.8%
Risk free interest rate 6.43% to 7.04% 4.48% to 3.80%
235 Zto3

Expecied hife in years




Utkarsh Smal! Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.17 Disclosures under AS <15 on employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plans:

Employer’s conrtribution recognized and charged off for the year with respect to defined contribution plans are as under:
(T in crore}

Particulars Far the year ended | For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Provident Fund (refer note below) 33.54 25,18

£S81 4.29 3.36

Note: The above amount is netted off with amount of INil received under the scheme “Pradhan Mantrni Rojgar Protsahan Yojana™ for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2021 : 70.47 crores).

Defined Benefit Plans:

The Bank has a defined benefit gratuity plan, Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible for gratnty on
cessation of employment and it is computed at 15 days” salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to limit of 220
facs as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as amended from time to time. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of
a qualifying insurance policy.

The fotlowing table sets out the status of the defined benefir gratuity plan as required under Accountiag Standard 13,

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation {% in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening defined benciir obligation 19.43 15.66
Cutrent service cost 5.40 4.73
Past service costs - -
Interest cost 1.12 0.78
Actuarial losses/ (gains} {0.53) (0.43)
Benefits paid {2.31) (1.28)
Closing defined benefit obligation 13.16 14.48
Change in the plan assets {Tin crore)
. As af Asg at
Particulacs 31 Macch 2623 1 31 March 2022
Opening {air value of plan asses 18,84 14,38
Expected retumn on plan assets 131 .94
Emplovers Contnibutions 4.23 4.68
Benefit paid (1.33) (1,28
Actuasial gains / (losses) on plan asiews 0.013 {0.0%)
Closine faiy value of plan assets 11416 18.84
Net liability / (assct) recognized 1a the balance sheat (¥ in crore)
. As at As at
Barticulars 3 March 2023 | 3t March 2022
Present value of funded obligation 1316 19.48
Fair value of plan asszts 2206 18.84
Deficit! {Surplus) 1.18 0.64
Net fiahility / {asset) recognized in the bafance .
8.64 N
sheet @
Wrlmbes!




Net cost recognised in the profit and loss recount

(Zan crore)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 1023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Current service cost 3.40 4.75
Past service costs - B
Interest cost 1.12 0.78
Expected retumn on plan assels {1.31} {0.94)
Net actuarial losses / {gains) {0.56) (0.33)
Total cost of defined benefit plans included in

Schedule 16 Payments to and provisions for 4.65 4.4

craployees

Reconciliation of opening and closing net liability / {asset) recognised in the balance sheet

{Z in crore)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening net liability 0.64 1.08
Expenses as recognised in profit & Loss 465 424
account
Employers contribution {£.23) 14.68)
Net Hability / (asset) recognised in balance 106 064
sheet
Experience adjustment and details of obligations and assets {Z in crore)
Particular As af Asatl Asat As at As at
rhiculars 38 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 |31 March 202131 March 2028|31 March 2019
Preseat value of funded obligation 13.16 16,47 15.66 11.28 7.34
Fair value of plan assets 2200 15.84 14.58 in.81 592
Deficit / {Surplus) 1.10 0.63 1.08 0.47 1.42
On Plan Lizbilities {gains} / losscs (0.33) (13,43} (.85 (.75 {1.33
On Plun Asscts (losses) / gains 0.03 (6.08) (0.43) 0.14 (0.20)
A breakup of Invesiments under plan assets of gratuity fund s as follows:
Cat of ¢ As at Asoat
4] 3 AsseLs
ategory of asen I March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Funds with LIC(through gratuity frust) 1065 100%5
Key Actuarial Assumpiions
Particul Asui As at
articutars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.25% 3.75%
Expected rate of return on plan assct 7.25% 6.84%
8.30% 7.00%

Salary escalotion

Attntion rate

15.10% 10 31.90%

13,10% w 31.99%

Priscount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian govemnment securities as at the balance sheet date for the

estimated tzom of the obligations.
Safary escalation rate:
relevant factors.

The estimates of future salary increases considered taking ato account the inflation, senionity, prometion and other

Expected rate of return: The everall expected rate of retum on assels is deiermined based on the average long term rate of retum expected on




Eltkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 39 Aarch 2023

18.18 {A) Business Segments:

In tams of AS-17 {Segment Reponing) issusd by 1CAl and RBI cireeler Ref. DBOD.Na. BPBC.31:21040182005-07 dated i3 April 2007 read with BBR.BP BC
No 23/21.04.018/2015-16 dated 01 July 2015 and amendments thereto, the following business segments have been disclosed:

Corporate/ Wholesale Bankirg: Includes fending, deposits and other banking services provided (o carporate custamers of the Bank.

Retait Banking: Includes lending. deposits and other banking services provided to retail custamers of the Bank through branch nerwork.

Treasury: Includes dealings in SLR and Non SER invesiments, mauienance of reserve tequiremants and resource mobilization from other Banks and Gnsncial Institutions

Other Banking Operations: Includes other activities which are not covered under whalesale, retail or treasury activity.

Geographical segments: The business operations of the Bank are concentrated tn India hence the Bank is coasidered 1o nperate in domestic segnent only.

The follawing table sets forth the business segment results:

Notes:

+ The business of the Bank dacs nov exiend oatsids india aud it does not have any assals outside bl ot carmogs emanuting fom outside India. Accordi

in the domestic segment only.

« Income, expenses, assets and labifities have beea i
- Unallncated iterns ineheds Fised Ausas, Capisal expendingm, realized gaina/lossas un thelr ssie, meomg 1ax
- [n computing the sbave wfonmation. cenain estimazes and assumprons have peen made by the management

+ The above informatios is provided 2 per MIS for intemal reporting purpase and refied upon byt auditors.

- The R8I vide its circular dared April 7. 2022 on eswblishment of Digital Banking Units {DEL5Y
ation {I8A) has formed DBU Working Group which include reprs

Sepment. Indian Banks' Asso

Retail Banking Sexment wilt be inplemented by

the

serting up DBUS i the future and hence the same has not been disclosed 23 a segment.

18.18 (A} Geographic Segments

has pra

Damestic Enternations] Total
Purticulars Ason 3l Ason 3l Ason 3t Asan ¥ Ason 5l Asondl
Aarch 2013 March 2022 March 20331 March 2022 | March 2033 March 2422
(a) Revenue 280429 201145 - 3.804.29 203365
(b) Assets 1911754 15,063.77 - - 19,117 34 £5.063.77
BDuinestic {nternationat Total
Particuiars Ason 3t Ason 3t Asan 3 As o 3t Asan 3
March 20221 Msrch 20211 March 20234 ¥ideeh 1315 March 2821
{a} Revenue 2035.63 1.725.14 -/ S ahs.65 172514
(b) Asscts 15063 77| 12.137.81 Nige0s.77 | 12,137.91

{1 in crore)
Business Segments Treasury Whﬂ(l:e:]sr'a[;?;::kiag Retail Banking Otcl;::::’:l:g Total
Pasticulars Ason 3l Ason 3 Asan H Ason 3l Ason 31 Ason 3l Ason 31 Asandt Asondl Ason 3t
Macch 2823 | March 2022 | Macch 20213 Mereh 20231 Macch 20231 March 28223 March 20231 Murch 28221 March 2023 March HI22
Revanue 23277 203,10 146.08 78.36 23254 175198 - - IR04.20 3033165
Result 2101 31.70 {28.63) {3R.41Y 343.43 105.43 - - 3R1 L
Unallocated expenses - R
Opepsting ProfitLass) % 535.8% T9.7¢
Income Tax expense {including defemmed 1ax) 1313 13.23
Extraordinacy profic / (lass) - .
Net Profil 40430 6146
(ther [nformations: i
|Segment Assets 15,686.38 14,613.46
Unallocated Assets 43116 43038
Taial Assels 19.117.54 | 1584377
Segment Liabilities 6.0U67.67 P7000.39 | 1345467
Unailocated Liahilitics 2102693 160610
Total Liabitities 19.117.34 | 15,063.97
% in crored
Business Segnents Treasuty \\’hutl::iz:ri;::king Relail Baaking og‘;::::::g Tutat
Particulars Az ore 3 As on 31 Ason M Ason 31 Ason 3l Ason 31 As o 31 Ason As on 3} Asoon 3
Atarch 2022} Afacch 20241 March 2022 Macch 2021 | Margh 2022 March 1023 | March 20321 March 202} March 2023 March 2021
Revenue 303,10 233348 164 [ FEEIN L) 1,439,356 - - 203105 IR
Result RS 6319 7971 i
Unailocated axpenses : - R
Operating ProfitiLoss) 7471
Income Tax expense {including delemed tax) 1$.25
Extruordinary profi {loss) - .
Net Profit AR 11182
Otler Informations:
Serment Assets [ERAERD
Unaliocated Assets 4303
Total Asscts 1306377
Segment Ligbilities 1345467
Unatlecated Lizbilitzes AL
Totaf Liabilities 15.i13.77

crihed reparting of Digitel Banking Segment a3 2 sub-semment of Rotad
watives of hanks snd RBL The reporting of Digital Banking as 3 scparate suh-sean
Hank based en the decision of the DBU Working Ciroup, The Bank has not formed any DBU as at 3} Mareh 2023 and &5 iR ThE Process

s the Bank hus reportad pperations

sr specifically identificd to individual seament or allocaied to segments an g reasonzble basis ot are clissified as wnallacaicd.
spense, deferred incomue fax asseis habilities and advancs .
have been relied upon by the suditors.

Hirking




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.19 Related Party Transactions
The Bank's related parties for the year ended 31 March 2023 are disclosed below:

1. Holding Company
Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (erstwhile Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)

2, Related Company
Utkarsh Welfare Foundation
Conseguent to the disinvestment by Utkarsh Core-Invest Limited (UCL) on 26 February 2022,
UWTF is no longer a subsidiary of UCL and consequently fellow subsidiary of the Bank.
However, it continue to be the related party of the Bank due to common directorship and as
relatives of the common director are the members in UWF

3. Key Management Personnel (‘KMP?)
Mr. Govind Singh- Managing Director and CEO
Mr. Mukund Barsagade- Chief Financial Officer (upto 22 September 2022)
M. Sarjukumar Pravin Simaria - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 31 Ociober 2022)
Mr. Muthiah Ganapathy - Company Secretary

4. Eaterprise where KMP exercise significant influence
RAAQG Family Private Trust

5. Post-employment benefit plan
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Employees’ Gratuity Trust

6. Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Name of KMFP Father and Mother Spouse and Children Other relatives
Mr. Govind Singh Father - deceasad Revati Govind Singh (Spouse)  {Ramesh Chandra Singh {Brother)
Parvati Devi (Mather) Ankur Singh (Son} Reau Singh (Sister in Law)
Achin Singh {Son}
Mr. Sarjukumar Pravin Simaria_{Father-Pravin V. Simaria Karuna 8. Simaria {Spouse) Bharat P. Simaria- Brother

Mother-Nirmala P, Simarta Malav S. Simariz {Son)
Bhakii S. Simaria (Daughter)
Mr. Muthish Ganapathy Both deceased {akshm Devi {Spouse) Mukesh (Brothen)
Aarna {Daughter}
Arshini {Daughter)
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

18.20 Leases
Operating Lease

Lease payments made under canceilable operating lease amounting to #58.08 crores {31 Marck 2022 1 ¥46.353 vrores) disclosed as rent

under Schedule 16 and the same have been recognized as an exp
with Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (“the Holding Company™).

Minimum lease payments {MLP) outstanding i respect of leased a

ense in the Profit and Loss Account. There are one sublease agreenent

ssets are as follows:

{ in crore)

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 20622
Due within one year 62.22 42.65
Due later than one yvear and not later than five years 21331 193.25
Due later than five years 30.47 53.30
Total 356.00 331.40

Finance Lease
The Bank has acquired certain IT hardware assets and ATM mach

ines under finance lease. Lease term of such assets 1s 7 years. Minimum
lease payments (MLP) outstanding m respect of leased assets as at 31 March 2023 are as follows:

(% in crore)
Particulars Future MLP Interest not due Present Value of
MLP
Due within one vear 5.93 1.21 472
Due later than one year and not later than five years 5.73 1.78 3.96
Due later than five years 0.93 0.12 0.81
Total 12.59 310 9.49

Minimum lease payments (MLP) outstanding in respect of eased assets as at 31 Mareh 2022 are as follows:

(T in crore)

Particulars Future MLP Interest not due Present Value of
MLP
Due within ong year 542 .30 4,12
Due later than one year and not later than five years 8.69 1.64 7.03
Due later than {ive vears .51 .06 G.45
Total 14.62 3,04 11.62
18.21 Current Tax and Deferred Tax
a, Current Tax
. As at As at

Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for [ncome tax 125.74 3194
Provision for Deferred tax 5.57 {34.69)
MAT credit entitlernent - -
Total 131.31 18.25

b. Deferred Tax

Major components of deferred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilities arc as under:

{% in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 Macch 2023

As at
31 Mareh 2022

Deferred tax assefs:

Provision for assets 4904 63.47
Unamortised processing fees on advances 28.21 21.88
Finance lease 239 293
Provision against Lease Equalisation 4.99 370




Provision on Casual Leave 1.17 0.99
Others .78 0.28
86.49 93.26
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciatian on fixed assets {0.91) 0.13
Gain on mark to mark on extersal commercial borrowings - -
Unamortised processing fee on borrowings 0.30 046
{0.61) 0.59
Net deferred tax assets / (liability) 87.09 92.66

18.22 Disclosure Under The Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(¥ in crote)

above)}

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a. Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 0.43 6.53
b Tnterest accrued, due to suppliers under MSMEID Act on the
above amount, and unpaid - -
¢. Payment made to supphiers {other than interest) beyond the
appointed day during the year 98.83 31.96
d_ Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16} - -
= Interest due and payable towards supplicts under MSMED Act
for payments already made 1.58 (.23
T Tntercst accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to
suppliers under MSMED Act (including interest mentioned 1n {€)

1.58 0.23

Yoo
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grjlﬁW;’
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schednles forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2823

18.23.1 Contingent liabilities
1. Description of nature of contingent liabilities is set out below:

a. There is a capital commitment towards open purchase orders.

b. Pending litigation against the Bank.

¢. Demands against tax assessments.

d. Commitment towards irrevocable Undrawn Fund Based Credit facilities

Refer Schedule 12 for amounts relating to contingent liabilities.
18.23.2 Letter of comfort

Bank has not issued any letters of comfort during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
Further, there are no outstanding comfort letters as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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18.24 The board of directors in their meeting dated 30 May 2022 decided to contribute towards corporate social responsibility up to
£3.22 crore as required to be spent by Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

{1 crore}

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the vear 3.22 350
b) Amount spent during the year on purposes other than
construction/acquisition of any assei
Paid in cash 322 3.76
Yet to be paid - -
Total of amount spent 3.22 3.70

18.25 The foilowing table sets forth, for the years indicated, the movernent in software acquired by the Bauk, as included in fixed
assets.

(T in crorz)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2823 31 March 2022
At cost at 31 March of preceding vear 23.07 19.37
Additions during the year 15.07 15,30
Dreductions during the year - -
Accumulated depreciation to date 13.86 12,50
Net block 2428 2307

18.26 In the year ended 31 March 2023, the impact of disruptions reselting from COVID -19 has cased substantially. however 1ae
Bank continues to moniter the developments/ ongoing impact resulting from COVID-19 Pardemic and any action to contain its spread
or mitigate its impact.

As at 31 March 2023, Bank carries additional floating provision of 280 crores {60 crores as at 31 December 2022) and additioral
contingency provision of 213 crores (63 crores as at 31 December 2022} Further, the Bank was carrying an additional contingen .y
provision of 263 crores as at 31 March 2022 which has been utilised to the extent of 252 crores in the current year and consequen'ly
the provision as at 31 March 2023 15 13 crores.

18.27 The Bank’s pending litigations include claims against the Bank by counterparties and proceedings pending with tax authoritizs.
The Bank has reviewed its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required, 2ad
disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable.

18.28 The Bank, as part of iis normal banking business, grants loans and advances, makes investments, provides guarantees, 10 and
accepts deposits and borrowings from its customers and borrowing from entities. These transactions are part of Bank's normal bankiag
business, which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regulatory requirements and banks internal policies as applicable.

Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds o1
securities premium or any other sources ot kind of funds} by the Bank to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entiti2s
("Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shatl [end or invest in pa:ty
identified by or on behalf of the Bank (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Bank has not received any fund from any parties (Funding Parv)
with the understanding that the Bank shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
ide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimare
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18.29 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary 1o contimm current year classification.
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